
     P a g e  1 | 3 

MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 REGULAR MEETING 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
DISTRICT OFFICE 

14451 CEDARWOOD AVENUE 
WESTMINSTER, CA 

Tuesday, April 4, 2023 
5:30 P.M. 

AGENDA 

OUR MISSION STATEMENT   
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES OF MIDWAY CITY SANITARY 

DISTRICT WORK DILIGENTLY TO PROVIDE SEWER AND SOLID WASTE SERVICES 
TO THE RESIDENTS OF THE DISTRICT. OUR TOP PRIORITY IS TO ACCOMPLISH 
THIS IN AN ETHICAL, EFFICIENT, AND COST-EFFECTIVE MANNER THAT WILL 

PROTECT THE HEALTH AND SAFETY OF THOSE WE SERVE. 

In accordance with the requirements of California Government Code Section 54954.2, this 
Agenda is posted not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting date and time above.  All written 
materials relating to each agenda item are available for public inspection in the office of the 
Board Secretary. 

In the event any matter not listed on this agenda is proposed to be submitted to the Board for 
discussion and/or action, it will be done in compliance with Section 54954.2, or as set forth on 
a Supplemental Agenda posted not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting. 

Please Note:  The District complies with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA).  Anyone needing special assistance please contact the District’s Secretary at (714) 
893-3553, at least one business day prior to the meeting so that we may accommodate you.

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION

2. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF QUORUM

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS

All persons wishing to address the Board on specific Agenda items or matters of general
interest should do so at this time.  As determined by the President, speakers may be
deferred until the specific item is taken for discussion and remarks may be limited to three
(3) minutes.



     P a g e  2 | 3 

4. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES

A. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on March 21, 2023

5. APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES

A. Approval of Demands in the Amount of $1,196,468.01

6. REPORTS

The President, General Manager, General Counsel and other staff present verbal reports
on miscellaneous matters of general interest to the Directors.  These reports are for
information only and require no action by the Directors.

A. Report of President
B. Report of General Manager
C. Report from the District Luncheon on March 22, 2023
D. Report from OC San District Meeting on March 22, 2023
E. Report from the Building Project Ad Hoc Committee Meeting on March 28, 2023
F. Report from the ISDOC Virtual Quarterly Meeting on March 30, 2023

7. CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be acted upon
at the same time unless separate discussion and/or action is requested by a Board
Member, the public, or staff.

A. Approve the Statement of Work for Audit Services, the Agreed-upon Procedures,
and Compilation & Preparation Between the Midway City Sanitary District and
CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP to Perform the Independent Audit for Fiscal Year 2022-2023

B. Approve Request of Solid Waste Driver Robert Mayfield to Received 40 hours of
Vacation Pay in Lieu of Time Off Due to Financial Hardship

8. OLD BUSINESS:

None

9. NEW BUSINESS

A. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-09 OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT OF ORANGE
COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING AMENDED PURCHASING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES           (Roll Call Vote)

B. Consider Approval of a Consultant Agreement between the Midway City Sanitary
District and Kenneth Robbins to Provide Temporary Consulting and Advisory Services
in an Amount Not to Exceed $15,600



     P a g e  3 | 3 

C. Consider Approval of Notice of Termination / Non-Renewal of the Automatic Renewal
and Extension Provision of the Exclusive Franchise Agreement with CR&R
Incorporated

10. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

A. March 29, 2023 CR&R Request for Support to Utilize Landfills Outside of Orange
County

11. BOARD CONCERNS/COMMENTS

12. GM/STAFF CONCERNS/COMMENTS

13. GENERAL COUNSEL CONCERNS/COMMENTS

14. CLOSED SESSION

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS (Government Code
Section 54957.6) Agency Designated Representatives: Interim General Manager
Robert Housley and Labor Counsel Joseph Larsen, Employee Organization: American
Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees, LOCAL 1734-01

15. ADJOURNMENT TO TUESDAY, APRIL 18, 2023

CLOSED SESSION: During the course of conducting the business set forth on this agenda as a regular meeting 
of the Board, the Chair may convene the Board in closed session to consider matters of pending real estate
negotiations, pending or potential litigation, or personnel matters, pursuant to Government Code Sections
54956.8, 54956.9, 54957 or 54957.6, as noted.

Reports relating to (a) purchase and sale of property; (b) matters of pending or potential litigation; (c)
employment actions or negotiations with employee representatives; or which are exempt from public disclosure 
under the California Public Records Act, may be reviewed by the Board during a permitted closed session and
are not available for public inspection. At such time as the Board takes final action on any of these subjects, the
minutes will reflect all required disclosures of information.



P a g e  1 | 7 
1761691.1 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDWAY CITY 

SANITARY DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
14451 CEDARWOOD AVENUE 

WESTMINSTER, CA  92683 

March 21, 2023 

CALL TO ORDER 

President T. Diep called the regular meeting of the Governing Board of the Midway City Sanitary 
District to order at 14451 Cedarwood Avenue, Westminster, California on Tuesday, March 
21, 2023 at 5:36 PM.   

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: STAFF PRESENT: 
Tyler Diep Robert Housley, General Manager  
Andrew Nguyen Cynthia Olsder, Executive/Board Secretary 
Chi Charlie Nguyen Nick Castro, Director of Operations/Safety 
Sergio Contreras Milo Ebrahimi, District Engineer 
Mark Nguyen 

OTHERS PRESENT:    
James Eggart, General Counsel 

PLEDGE AND INVOCATION 

Director of Operations & Safety led the Pledge of Allegiance.  General Counsel gave the 
Invocation. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 7, 2023

A motion was made by Director A. Nguyen, seconded by Director S. Contreras, to approve the 
minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 7, 2023. The motion was approved by the following  
5-0 vote:

AYES: A. Nguyen, C. Nguyen, M. Nguyen, S. Contreras, T. Diep 
NAYS: 
ABSTAIN:   
ABSENT:  



 

 

                                    P a g e  2 | 7 
1761691.1 

APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES               
 
A. Demands in the amount of $294,682.97     

 

 
 

A motion was made by Director C. Nguyen, seconded by Director A. Nguyen, to approve the 
expenditure in the amount of $294,682.97. The motion was approved by the following  
5-0 vote: 
 
AYES: S. Contreras, A. Nguyen, C. Nguyen, M. Nguyen, T. Diep 
NAYS: 
ABSTAIN:   
ABSENT:  

# CK	# DATE AMOUNT	 	VENDOR	CHECKS: MEMO:
1 14447 3/2 36.96 Betty Jo Greene Refund for check # 338 received on 2/17/23 - Deposit 02/23/23
2 14448 3/2 1,891.48 Clean Energy CNG Station site inspection
3 14449 3/2 568.74 Cummins Pacific LLC Pressure sensor for solid waste
4 14450 3/2 287.11 Daniels Tire Service Restock tires for solid waste
5 14451 3/2 98.02 Spectrum Enterprise (Time Warner Cable) Internet Services Feb-2023
6 14452 3/2 1,348.16 Standard Insurance Company Life Life Insurance & AD&D premiums
7 14453 3/10 560.00 Ayala's Car Wash Washing and cleaning of district's fleet
8 14454 3/10 2,942.93 Bodyworks Equip. Inc. Parts for Heil system for solid waste trucks
9 14455 3/10 106.90 Cameron Welding Supply Propane for Shop
10 14456 3/10 208.44 City of Westminster-Water Billing Westminster lift station water
11 14457 3/10 899.95 CRC Cloud Monthly IT maintenance & Support  
12 14458 3/10 2,119.28 Cummins Pacific LLC Valve pressure and elbow adapter for solid waste
13 14459 3/10 45.90 Cynthia Loan Olsder Employee reimbursements
14 14460 3/10 2,270.92 Daniels Tire Service Restock tires for solid waste
15 14461 3/10 741.14 Driveshaftpro Mack system parts for solid waste trucks
16 14462 3/10 612.75 Frontier Communications District office phones & lift stations
17 14463 3/10 743.09 Haaker Equipment Co. Sewer supplies for sewer trucks
18 14464 3/10 1,450.00 Me Viet Nam Productions Talk Show 15 minute (5) 2/11-26/23
19 14465 3/10 14,523.20 Orange County Sanitation District Permit Fees Feb-2023
20 14466 3/10 66.56 Petty Cash - Robert Housley Petty Cash Feb-2023
21 14467 3/10 1,821.46 Pro-Vision, Inc. Camera system for Samara system for new truck NG-18
22 14468 3/10 1,650.00 Radio Bolsa Corp. Radio talk shows (5) 3/7-10/23
23 14469 3/10 59,900.00 Rengel + Company Architects, Inc Building project management Feb-2023
24 14470 3/10 4,201.59 SDRMA - Employee Benefits Dental and vision benefits 
25 14471 3/10 348.67 SoCal Auto & Truck Parts, Inc. Tools and supplies for shop use
26 14472 3/10 14,956.31 SoCalGas Natural Gas for offices, shop, and wash rack 
27 14473 3/10 300.00 Streamline Website monthly member fee
28 14474 3/10 27.50 Underground Service Alert Underground dig alerts Feb-2023
29 14475 3/10 555.48 UniFirst Corporation Employee uniform & laundry services
30 14476 3/10 10,222.00 Woodruff, Spradlin & Smart Legal Services Jan-2023
31 125,504.54$		 CHECKS	SUBTOTAL
32
33 PAYROLL: MEMO
34 ACH 3/3 7,977.82$     Paychex Board of Directors Payroll - Checks,  Taxes, & Direct Deposits
35 ACH 3/3 823.50$        Nationwide Retirement Solutions 457 Deferred Compensation (Board of Directors)
36 ACH 3/8 78,696.39$     Paychex Employee Payroll - Checks,  Taxes, & Direct Deposits
37 ACH 3/8 5,519.23$        Nationwide Retirement Solutions 457 Deferred Compensation (Employees)
38 93,016.94$					 ACH	TRANSFERS	SUBTOTAL
39
40 ACH	PAYMENTS: MEMO
41 ACH 3/2 6,874.74$     CalPERS Board of Directors Health Insurance Premiums for Mar-23
42 ACH 3/2 67,566.95$  CalPERS Active Employee and Retiree Health Ins Premiums Mar-23
43 ACH 3/13 1,719.80 Chevron Texaco (Wex Bank) Gasoline and diesel fuel for Mar-23
44 76,161.49$					 ACH	TRANSFERS	SUBTOTAL
45 	
46 294,682.97$		 TOTAL	EXPENDITURES	(ACCOUNTS	PAYABLE	CHECKS,	PAYROLL,	ACH	TRANSFERS)
47



 

 

                                    P a g e  3 | 7 
1761691.1 

REPORTS 
 
Report of President:    
 
None 
 
Report of Interim General Manager 
 
GM, R. Housley introduced the District Engineer, Milo Ebrahimi. He reported that the building 
construction project is still delayed due to rain. He reported that Anthony Torres-Gomez, one of 
the drivers, had been recognized by the District for his exceptional customer service and given a 
gift certificate. He reported that an email will be sent out setting up a date for a field trip to the 
CR&R Anaerobic Digestion Plant for April from 9 am to 3 pm.  Additionally, GM R. Housley reported 
that he encouraged staff members to participate in a number of online webinars offered by OC 
San to better acquaint staff with the agency and its services. 
 
Report from VietLink Radio Outreach on March 2, 2023 
 
Director A. Nguyen and Director C. Nguyen attended the radio recording to discuss the District’s 
services and forthcoming events.  
 
Report from Radio Bolsa Radio Outreach on March 6, 2023 
 
Director M. Nguyen and Director S. Contreras attended the radio recording to discuss the District’s 
services and forthcoming events.  
 
Report from VNCR Radio Outreach on March 6, 2023 
 
Director A. Nguyen and Director C. Nguyen attended the radio recording to discuss the District’s 
services and forthcoming events.  
 
Report from OC San District Special Meeting on March 8, 2023 
 
Director A. Nguyen reported that this was the first in-person meeting and it primarily focused on 
refreshing, updating and reviewing the procedure.  
 
Report from Franchise Committee Meeting on March 10, 2023 
 
Director S. Contreras reported that he would like the District to coordinate with CR&R to organize 
an educational event with the Westminster school district.   
 
GM R. Housley explained how CR&R determines when to deliver the organic bins.  He reported 
that the organic bins are being rolled out based on the account number and the date the owner 
signed up for service.   Additionally, he reported that 30-40% of the organic bins have been rolled 
out.  Going forward, CR&R will distribute the organic bin by area so that everyone in the same 
geographic area has it delivered at the same time, and CR&R will continue to work on providing 
information about the organic bin drop off to the property owners.  At the next franchise meeting, 
CR&R will present dates for a residential and commercial characterization study.  



 

 

                                    P a g e  4 | 7 
1761691.1 

Director C. Nguyen reported that the District should consider collaborating with the City of 
Westminster’s Community Preservation Unit (CPU) to help remove unsightly garbage and other 
refuse littering the community.  
 
Report from the Clean-up Event at Westminster Village Park on March 11, 2023 
 
Director A. Nguyen reported that the event’s low attendance may have been caused by the 
weather.   
 
President T. Diep reported that he has suggested new ideas to the General Manager for promoting 
the clean-up events.  
 
Report from the Building Project Ad Hoc Committee on March 14, 2023 
 
Director S. Contreras and Director M. Nguyen reported that everything is proceeding as planned 
and deferred to GM R. Housley to give an update.     
 
Director C. Nguyen stated that he would like the District to seek a second opinion before approving 
any change order forms.   
 
Report from the Open House Assemblymember Tri Ta on March 16, 2023 
 
It was a respectable turnout, according to the Directors.  Residents, elected officials, and police 
officers gathered to congratulate him. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR                       
 
A.  Approve and File the Treasurer’s Investment Report for February 2023 
 
B.  Approve the March 10, 2023, Franchise Committee Report 

 
A motion was made by Director S. Contreras, seconded by Director A. Nguyen, to  
approve the Consent Calendar.  The motion was approved by the following 5-0 vote: 
 
AYES: S. Contreras, A. Nguyen, M. Nguyen, C. Nguyen, T. Diep 
NAYS:  
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:  

 
 

OLD BUSINESS:   
 
           None 
  
 
 
 



 

 

                                    P a g e  5 | 7 
1761691.1 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
A.  Consider Rescheduling the May 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting 
             

A staff report and recommendation were provided and considered by the Board.  A 
motion was made by President T. Diep, seconded by Director S. Contreras, to approve 
rescheduling the May 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting to May 15, 2023 at 5:30 p.m.  The 
motion was approved by the following 5-0 vote: 

 
 AYES: S. Contreras, A. Nguyen, M. Nguyen, C. Nguyen, T. Diep 
 NAYS:  
 ABSTAIN:   
 ABSENT:  
 
 
B.  Consider and Approve Scheduling the Public Budget Workshops/Study Sessions and Public  
     Hearing for Budget Adoption for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
            

A staff report and recommendation were provided and considered by the Board.  A 
motion was made by President T. Diep, seconded by Director C. Nguyen, to schedule 
the first and second public budget workshops/study sessions for April 17, 2023 at 5:30 
p.m. and May 22, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. and to schedule the Public Hearing for budget 
adoption for fiscal year 2023-2024 for June 6, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. The motion was 
approved by the following 5-0 vote: 

 
 AYES: S. Contreras, A. Nguyen, M. Nguyen, C. Nguyen, T. Diep 
 NAYS:  
 ABSTAIN:   
 ABSENT:  
 
 
 C. Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Purchase Up to Three (3) New Class C  
      Passenger Vehicles in an Amount Not To Exceed a Total of $160,000.00 
 

A staff report and recommendation were provided and considered by the Board.  A 
motion was made by President T. Diep, seconded by Director S. Contreras, to authorize 
the General Manager to negotiate and enter into a contract on behalf of the District to 
purchase one (1) new class “C” passenger vehicle for District staff job-related use within 
the annual budgeted amount of $160,000.00 for vehicle purchases. The motion was 
approved by the following 5-0 vote: 
 

 AYES: S. Contreras, A. Nguyen, M. Nguyen, C. Nguyen, T. Diep 
 NAYS:  
 ABSTAIN:   
 ABSENT:   
 
 
 



 

 

                                    P a g e  6 | 7 
1761691.1 

D. Review and Discussion on Tires Purchased and Repaired for the District’s Fleet of Heavy-  
     Duty Trucks and Vehicles 
         

A staff report was provided and considered by the Board.  A motion was made by Director 
C. Nguyen, seconded by Director A. Nguyen, to receive and file the report. The motion 
was approved by the following 5-0 vote: 
 

 AYES: S. Contreras, A. Nguyen, M. Nguyen, C. Nguyen, T. Diep 
 NAYS:  
 ABSTAIN:   
 ABSENT:  
 
 
E.  A RESOLUTION NO. 2023-08 OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDWAY CITY   
     SANITARY DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY CALIFORNIA, ESTABLISHING A   
     VOLUNTEER INTERNSHIP PROGRAM 
         

A staff report and recommendation were provided and considered by the Board.  A 
motion was made by Director C. Nguyen, seconded by Director S. Contreras, to adopt 
Resolution No.2023-08, approving the establishment of a volunteer internship program. 
The motion was approved by the following 5-0 roll call vote: 
 

 AYES: S. Contreras, A. Nguyen, M. Nguyen, C. Nguyen, T. Diep 
 NAYS:  
 ABSTAIN:   
 ABSENT:  
 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
1. City of Westminster Bunny Hop Events  
 

 Received and File  
 
BOARD CONCERNS/COMMENTS  
 
The Directors welcomed Milo Ebrahimi to the District.  
 
President T. Diep reminded the Directors of the District Employee luncheon on March 22, 2023. 
 
Director C. Nguyen thanked staffs who participated in the Westminster Village Park Clean-up 
event.  
 
GM/STAFF CONCERNS/COMMENT 
 
GM, R. Housley commented that banners, door hangers, and yard signs for the Clean-up event 
had been ordered and would be ready for the April event. 
 



 

 

                                    P a g e  7 | 7 
1761691.1 

GM, R. Housley shared that the administration luncheon day is set for Thursday, April 27, 2023. 
  
GENERAL COUNSEL CONCERNS/COMMENTS 
 
None 
 
 
CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          
A.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS (Government Code Section 54957.6)  

Agency Designated Representatives: Interim General Manager Robert Housley and Labor 
Counsel Joseph Larsen, Employee Organization: American Federation of State, County, 
and Municipal Employees, LOCAL 1734-01 
  

The Board did not convene into closed session. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
President T. Diep adjourned the meeting at 6:55 p.m. to the next Board meeting to be held at 
the District on Tuesday, April 4, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. 
 
 
________________________  
Andrew Nguyen, Secretary     

CLOSED SESSION: During the course of conducting the business set forth on this agenda as a regular meeting of the Board, the Chair 
may convene the Board in closed session to consider matters of pending real estate negotiations, pending or potential litigation, or 
personnel matters, pursuant to Government Code Sections 54956.8, 54956.9, 54957 or 54957.6, as noted. 
 
Reports relating to (a) purchase and sale of property; (b) matters of pending or potential litigation; (c) employment actions or 
negotiations with employee representatives; or which are exempt from public disclosure under the California Public Records Act, may 
be reviewed by the Board during a permitted closed session and are not available for public inspection. At such time as the Board takes 
final action on any of these subjects, the minutes will reflect all required disclosures of information. 



 

AGENDA ITEM 5A 

Date:   April 4, 2023 

To:   Board of Directors 

Prepared by: Robert Housley, Director of Finance & Human Resources 

Subject:  Approval of Demands in the Amount of $1,196,468.01 

 
BACKGROUND 
The laws of the State of California governing Special Districts provide that the Midway 
City Sanitary District Board of Directors shall review for approval all payments made by 
the District. 
 
A Register of Demands is provided at each regular Midway City Sanitary District Board 
Meeting describing each payment made or to be made by the District during the 
specified period. The report is designed to communicate fiscal activity based upon 
adopted and approved budget appropriations. 
 
The demands on the attached register have been duly reviewed by the Treasurer. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The total value of demands for this period is $1,196,468.01. This includes expenses, 
payroll and payroll related disbursements. 

 
Sufficient funds are available to process all payments. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors review and approve the attached Register 
of Demands. 
 



DISBURSEMENTS FOR 

April 4, 2023

# CK # DATE AMOUNT  VENDOR CHECKS: MEMO:

1 14477 3/23 1,079.47 Anthony J. Vela Reimburse sewer and trash ADU 2019-23
2 14478 3/23 468.81 AT&T (Brookhurst Lift Station) Brookhurst Mar-2023
3 14479 3/23 379.16 AT&T Mobility (First Net) Cell phone service Feb-2023
4 14480 3/23 670.00 Ayala's Car Wash Washing and cleaning of district's fleet
5 14481 3/23 3,949.79 Bodyworks Equip. Inc. Heil parts for solid waste trucks
6 14482 3/23 557.45 Cameron Welding Supply Welding supplies for shop
7 14483 3/23 84.94 City of Westminster Hydrant Hydrant water service Mar-2023
8 14484 3/23 190,971.98 CR Transfer, Inc. Tonnage Fees Jan-2023
9 14485 3/23 359.90 CRC Cloud Computer software for admin staff
10 14486 3/23 19,296.91 Cummins Pacific LLC Engine and valve repairs to solid waste trucks
11 14487 3/23 2,669.26 Daniels Tire Service Restock tires for solid waste
12 14488 3/23 5,890.00 Davis Farr LLP Accounting assistance Jan-2023
13 14489 3/23 1,268.56 Driveshaftpro Drive shaft for solid waste trucks
14 14490 3/23 659.47 Hillco Fastener Warehouse Inc. Restock lock nuts and bolts for solid waste
15 14491 3/23 828.36 Merchants Building Maintenance, LLC Janitorial services Mar-2023
16 14492 3/23 1,528.02 Motion and Flow Control Products, Inc. Hydraulic hoses for solid waste truck
17 14493 3/23 91,109.98 Orange County Treasurer-Tax Collector General election held on 11/08/22
18 14494 3/23 114.00 Paychex - Employee Screening New hire employee screening
19 14495 3/23 252.22 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services Postage machine 04/10 - 07/09/23
20 14496 3/23 201.00 Pitney Bowes/Purchase Power Postage for Feb-2023
21 14497 3/23 416.50 Rutan & Tucker, LLP Legal Services Feb-2023
22 14498 3/23 1,803.52 Safety-Kleen Systems, Inc. Hydraulic oil for solid waste trucks
23 14499 3/23 490.26 Snap-On Tools Tools for shop use
24 14500 3/23 125.12 SoCalGas Natural Gas for offices, shop, and wash rack 
25 14501 3/23 1,349.00 Spectrum Enterprise (Time Warner Cable) Internet Services Mar-2023
26 14502 3/23 322.17 Staples Business Credit Membership fee Feb-2023
27 14503 3/23 414,024.84 TEC of California, Inc. - Trucks Mack truck front loader 2023 
28 14504 3/23 555.48 UniFirst Corporation Employee uniform & laundry services
29 14505 3/23 1,500.00 Viet Link Radio Radio outreach
30 14506 3/23 2,062.50 VNCR Radio outreach
31 14507 3/23 243,736.33 Woodcliff Corporation - Contractor Building project pay application #5 Feb-2023
32 14508 3/23 12,828.23 Woodcliff Corporation - Escrow Account Building project pay application #5 - Retention payment
33 14509 3/23 8,900.50 Woodruff, Spradlin & Smart Legal services Feb-2023
34 1,010,453.73$       CHECKS SUBTOTAL

35
36 PAYROLL: MEMO
37 ACH 3/22 77,256.37$               Paychex Employee Payroll - Checks,  Taxes, & Direct Deposits
38 ACH 3/22 5,645.28$                  Nationwide Retirement Solutions 457 Deferred Compensation (Employees)

39 82,901.65$             ACH TRANSFERS SUBTOTAL

40
41 ACH PAYMENTS: MEMO
42 ACH 3/8 15,252.31$            CalPERS Retirement Contributions for 02/20-03/05/23
43 ACH 3/22 15,391.27$            CalPERS Retirement Contributions for 03/06-03/19/23
44 ACH 3/24 6,874.74$                  CalPERS Board of Directors Health Insurance Premiums for Apr-23
45 ACH 3/24 65,594.31$               CalPERS Active Employee and Retiree Health Ins Premiums Apr-23

46 103,112.63$           ACH TRANSFERS SUBTOTAL

47  
48 1,196,468.01$       TOTAL EXPENDITURES (ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS, PAYROLL, ACH TRANSFERS)
49

50 BANK TRANSFERS:
51 UB 3/14 665,000.00$             Transfer Funds from UB Money Market to UB Checking
52 UB 3/23 500,000.00$             Transfer Funds from LAIF to UB Checking

53 1,165,000.00$       BANK TRANSFERS

1 of 1 3/30/202311:05 AM



AGENDA ITEM 7A 
 
Date:   April 4, 2023 
 
To:    Board of Directors 
 
Prepared by: Robert Housley, General Manager 
 
Subject:   Approve the Statement of Work for Audit Services, the Agreed-upon 

Procedures, and Compilation & Preparation Between the Midway City 
Sanitary District and CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP to Perform the Independent 
Audit for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 

 
BACKGROUND 
At the January 7, 2020 meeting, the Board of Directors selected CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
(CLA) to provide independent audit services for the Midway City Sanitary District 
beginning for FY 19-20, for a total period of five (5) years, and ending with FY 23-24.  
 
Local government agencies are required by law to have an independent audit of their 
annual financial statements. The purpose of this audit is for the independent audit firm 
to express an opinion about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatements and in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles and in 
compliance with the Government Accounting Standards Board Statements.  
 
The Board of Directors is directly responsible for the appointment, compensation, 
retention, and oversight of the work of any independent accountants engaged for the 
purpose of preparing or issuing an independent audit report or performing other 
independent audit, review, or attest services.  All independent accounting firms are thus 
engaged to report directly to the Board of Directors. 
 
The Statement of Work letters for engagement are attached for review and approval.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve the statement of work for audit 
services, the agreed-upon procedures, and compilation & preparation between the 
Midway City Sanitary District and CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP to perform the independent 
audit for Fiscal Year 22-23. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Per the Statement(s) of Work, gross fees for services and materials will not exceed 
$25,000.  For comparison purposes, last year’s cost was $19,490. 
 
Attachments:   

1. CLA Statement of Work - Audit Services 22-23 (pink) 
2. CLA Statement of Work - Compilation & Preparation 22-23 (purple) 
3. CLA Statement of Work - Agreed-upon Procedures 22-23 (blue) 



��������	
�������������������������	����������������������� �!"�#�$%&'����!(')�*+	
���,-.�,/,0�1����2��3�����������3���	���	����������
4�567896:��3
�3	�������3
�����
	��.��
�������	��7
;�����<
���.�
�	�2������������	
������������56���.6�6�.6�63�.6�	�2�6�3
6:�	32������+�2�	=����=�7	���	
=�>���
����56=�3.6�6=�3
.6��
�6�������=6:�?�	���	����	��������
����=	
��22�@3��0/.�,/,0��1����789�����3���	��.�	���<����
�����<�.��
�	����	��
��
A3�
2�B=��3
��
�������	����	�2	
2�.����?
����3
�3�2
��	�2��<������������	�2��BC���;���������<	<���.��2���?�����
������B����������B��������	�2��������=�	�����
�	������������23���������	32��.�	�2�2��
�B������	�3
�	�2������	�������������
;������������
�;�2����=�3.�����32��<����	32����
;�����D	����E	2
�	��
.����.��FG.����
������B����
�����
��
�	���������	32����<	<����HIJKL�JM�NOPQR�SLTUQILS9������	32������?�	���	����	����������������=�	�����	�2���
����=	
��22�@3��0/.�,/,0.��������������;�=�����
������B	����?�	���	����	���������+�2�	=����=�7	���	
=�>���
���.�	�2����
�	�2������������?�	���	����	������1��V�;
����	������3����<�7�	�2	
2��W�	
2�5V�7W:��
�;�2����
��
�	���
A3�
2��3������	
=�����
�	�����5E7X:����	�����	�=��������=Y��B	����?�	���	����	������1����������<�E7X������B��3BC��2�����
�	��������2��
��23
�.�B3�����������B�	32��2�Z +	�	<���[��2���3������	�2�	�	�=����Z V�7W\
A3�
2��3������	
=��������	�2�8�GW����23����]Ĵ NOPQR�SLTUQILS9������	�����
�;�2������������<����	32�����
;����_��
�	
	��������=�3
�?�	���	����	������	�2����
�	�2�������_��
�	
	�����������
A3�
2���3������	
=�����
�	�����5E7X:�ÒPQR�JabLIRQULS1���BC���;������3
�	32���������?�	���	����	������	
�����B�	���
	���	B��	��3
	���	B�3������
����?�	���	����	������	��	������	
��
��
����	�
�	�������	����.�����
�23�����
	32��
�

�
.�	�2�����	<�-����-/



�������������	
������
�	�	��	����������
���
���
����
�	����	�����
�������������	�	����	������������������	�������������	�����������	�������
��
���	����	�����
��	���������������������������	������	������	����	�	���
�������������������� ��!���
����������������������������"���
��������������	�����
	����
��	����������������	�����
�������
	���������	���	��	��������	��
����	���������
���������	������	�����	����������������������	������	������	����	�	���
�������������������� ���������������	��	�����	����������	�	����	�������	��#��	���$���	�	����	�������������
�����
����������������
��������
�����
�����������
�����������	���������	��������������	��	������%����

��	��	������"��������
�����	����������	���	�����
������&������	���'������	���������������
�����������������
��	�������������	�	����	��(�������	����������
����	���������
���������	����������������	����	���������
���������������	���
�	���������)*+,-./,.0�123404.5�607.37-38������������	���9
�	�
�������������
��	������	����	�	����:�
����	����������;��������	
�������������	�
��	�����	�	������	
����	�
���
	�����	���������
�������	�����������
���������	��	�������"��	��	��������;�������	������	����	
�
�������	��(�������	��������������	��	��
���
������
��	�������
��������
	�����
������������
�����������������	
�����������	
��#�������������
���
���<��������������	��������	����
��������	
�	���!�=�������
���������	�������������>
��"�������������
	��#��������
���
��
���
"������������������
��	���!�=���������	�������	����
���������
��
	��
"���������	����������	��"�������	
��#��������
���
��
���
"�������������������<����������
����
����
��������	
�����������	
��#��������
���
��
�����	����	����������	�������
���	�
����������	�������
"� �
	����	����!�=����
��������	�������������	�	����	�������������	�	�������������	�����������	����������	�
��	
�	�������������	�	����	���������
���<������������������		�����
�	��
���
���	�
��
��
�������	�
���
��������������	�	����	��9������	�������������������������
�����
�	��������������
���	���#��	����
��������
�	��	�������
��	��������	��
��
�������	��?��������
��	�����	����
��	������������	��������	�������������������
�����	
��
�����
���
���
������������������@
�@��		���
��
	���@��		�����������	
�
�������	
������
�	��
������������������	��������
��	������������	��=��
���
���
�������
	����	�������
�����������������������	�������
�����	���
�������"������=���������	������
���������	���	
�	����
���	�
��
���
������
�����	����"��������	��
����������	����
���	������	��"��������
��	����#��	�����
�������������	����%�
����	����������	�	����	�
��	�������������	�	����	���������������
������������	������������
�	�����
�������
���	�
��
������	������������
����
�����
����'������	���"��	������
���
���	����	�������	�
���
������
���
���
��	�������������	�	����	��������	����	�������	�	
�	�%�������
�����
����	�
������		�������
�����
�����	�����������������������������	
��#�����
���
���
������������
�	��
����	�����������
��	������������	�<����������
��
"��������
�	���������
����
	������������
���
� �
����	�������
�	�
��
"��������������
�	��������
���
����������	��	����
"���
���
��������������	�
�����
�	���	�����������	���������	����
��
����������	���������
������"������	�����������	�
��	�������������	�	����	��������;����������
"������	�����	�����	���������:�����
�	�
����	�������
�	�
��
"��������������
�	��������
���
������������
	������		���������������������������	��	��	�	����A �	��	�	�����
���
��	�����
�	�����
�����	
����������	�����
��
��
���	��	����
����	�������
�	�
�������
������������	��������	��
��	��	�	��	����������
	�	
��
"�������
���
��
��	��������	�"������
��	�����	�	������	�������
�	�
��
��
���
��������������B �	��	�	�����
�	���������	��������	�
���������	����
�����������
���������	���
"������	�����	�����	������������
����������	�����	�	������	�������
�	�
�������
���������:�������������������
��	�	��	��	�	�����
�	�����
	����	������
������
	������
����=���������
�������	�������
���������	��	�	�����	�	��������'��	�	
��������	���;�������	������B�
��AC



������������	�
������	������	��	������������	����	�	�����	������
������
��	���������	�	����������	�
����	���������	����
	��������������
���
�	�����

����
	���������������������	�����������������
����������
������	�������	���	�������������������������������������	��	�	������	������	�������������
�����
������	����	�	������ !"#$�$%&'#(&!)!*!"!%&+�'$#,% �$%&+�-( �*!.!"-"!#(&/	������
���
���������������

����
	���������������������	�����������������
����������
������	����0123456357�89:;7;5<�=7>5:>4:?�@���	����������	����	�������	�	A	�
��	�����	��������B���	�������������������	���������C	���
�����������������	��������������	�������
	������	�����������������������������	�����D���E��F	������������	�����	����C��������	������������	�	��������	�����
��������	�	�������	��	���	������������	������	���������	��������������
	��	���	�������	��������	����C������	������	���	��	�������	��	�
	��G����	��������
�	����������������	���������	���G����������������������@�	����C��������	�	
����������	������������	�	����	�������������������������	�������������	��	�������������	������������������������	�
��������������	�������	�����������������������	��	�	���������������	���	���	�������	�����
���������E�HG����������	���������������	�����
��������	�	����������	�����������	�����	�������������
	��	���������	�����������	������	�
��
������
	���G�������������	�������	����	A��	����������������������	�	��	
���	�	��������	�	�����I�����	�����
��������J��	�	����	������
������
��	�����������������������������
����	�
�	�
�	��������	������	�C�	��	��������	�����
��������	�	����������	�����������	�����
��������	�	����������	����	��	����	���������	�������E�K������	���	�����������	�	�������

������������
�	����	������	��	�����G�	�	������������
�����

��������	������	����	�G�������	�	��������	������	������	���	���	�������	�	�������������	�����
��������	�	�������
��������	��������������
�����	��������	��	����	�����
��������	�	�����	��	�	�����	���	�������������
���������	�	�������������	��������
��	�	���������	�	���������E�L��
��	��G��	��������	������������������	��	�
	��G����	����	��	����	�	���	�
������������	�	�����
����	�	������	�����	���	�����������	���G�����������G���G������	�	�����M���G���������
������	������������
��
	����������	�����G�	��	����������	������������������������������������G		��
��
��	��������
�����������G	���	���	����	��	����	���	�����������������
�������C��������	������������	�	�������������������������������DE�N����	�	�����	���	����
����������E�O	�	��	��	
����������@�	�	��������������G�	����C��G	
���	������	����	�	������������������������������	��	���������	����	�	���������������������	�����
����������������	����	������������	�	������������G	�	�	
�	��	�	�����������	�������������	���������	�����	�����	�����

����
	����������������������	���	��������������������P	
���	��	�����������	��������	����	�	A�����������������������
����������	������������	�	�������	��	�������QRS�	�������QTS�������	�������
�����	���������QUS������������������������	�������QVS������������W��	�U����RX



�����������	�
�����������	��������������������������������������������������������������	����������������������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����
��������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������
������������������������������������	����������������!��������������������������������	��������������������������������������
���������������������	�
�����������	�����������������������
���������������������������������������������������������"���
������������������������������������
���������	�������������������	��������	�
�����������������������������������������������������������	����������������������������������������������������������#������������������������������������
���������	�������������������	��������	�
���������������
���������������������	�
�����������	�������������������������������������������������������������������$���������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������
����������
�����	�������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������
�����	�������������	���������������������	��������������������������
������������������	�������������������������	������	���������������
����������������������������������������������%���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	������������������������ �������������������������������������������������������������&'()*+,)+-�./01-1+2�3-4+04*0�����������������������	����������
����������������������������������������������������������������	�����������������������������������5����������������������������"���
��������������������������������������	���	����������������������������������5�������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������������	�����������������������������������������������������!67�����������������������������&'()*+,)+-�./01-1+2�3-4+04*08��������������������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������9������������������������
������������������	�������������������������	������	���������������
����������������������������������������������"���
���������������
���������������������������������
�������������������
��������������������������������� ����������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������	�����������#��������������������������������������������������
��������������������	����������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������	������������������������	������	������������������
������������������������������������������������������
��������������	�����������%��������������������������������������������������������
�������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������	�	���������������:;<;=>?><@�A>BCD<BEFEGE@E>B%�������������������������������������������������H���	��������������������������������������	��������	�
�������I���5������	����������������������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������� 7�	��J����KL



������������	�
�������������	��	������
��
�������	����
�����
���������
�
�����������
����
�������
��������
��������������������
�����
� �����	�
�����������
����������������
��
���		������
���������
��
��	��
��	��!��������
���
����"����
�������
������
���
������
�
�����������
��!��������
�
�����������
���
����������
����
�������
��
�������������
�������
������
�
�����������
��!���#����
�������
�
�����������
��������������������������������
��!��
����
����
���������
�������
�����
����	����
�����
����������������������������
$��
��������������������
���������������$��������
�����������
���
������
���
��	�����
�
���������������	������	����
�����������������%�������
��&����$��
���
��������������%���������
�
�����������
�����'�
�������������
�	��	���
�������
�
�����������
��%���
�����
�������(����������&��������������������������
�����
������&�
��%���
���������
��������������%������������������
���������������������
���$ �������$������
��
�����������
����
���
�����)*���
������$�
�������
�
�����������
������������������	�
������������������
%���	���
�����
%��
�����
��
�
�������������&���
���
����
�������&�
���������	��	������
��
�������	����
�����
�����
�
�����������
����������������������������������������
�%������������������������������%��
����
���&�����
���
����
�����
���
���
������&�������
������������
��������������	��
�����������		��	������������
����#����&�����������������������	�
������������������
%���	���
�����
%��
�����
��
�
�������
���
����
��������	��&�
���
��������������!��������
���������'�����������
�
�����������
�����$�����������$������������������������������!��
�������
�����
�������������'
��
�������	�������������������
�������
���$��
&�&�
��+),���
�����
�%�+*,���	�$����������&�����
����
��������
��
���
����
���%��
��+-,�������������������������������&��������������������
������
�
�����������
������������	�
�����������
������
�����
��������$����'
�����������
$��������
�����������������	�������������������
�������
���$������&����
������
������
���������	�$���%����������	�$���%����
����%����������%�������������
��������
%�$����������	�
�����������	���
��
���$�����������
�����������&�����	��
���������		�����������
����������
���
������	��&����
�������
��������
�����
���������
��!����
���$�
���
���
����
������������
���$����	����������		���������%���������
�%���
������%��
�����
���������
��!��
���
�����
�����������
���
����������
������������	������
�
���	��
������������������
������
�
�����������
��������������
��������������������	�
�����������'�
������$��
���		��	���������	����������$��
$��������
��
�
���	��
��������	��&����
��������%���������
�%���
������%��
�����
���������
�������������$���	���������������	�
���������	��&���
����������+),��������������
��������
����������$������������������������&�
���������	��	������
��
�������	����
�����
���������
�
�����������
��%��
����
������
����
������������%����������������%�������
�����
%����
��������
�������������	��������
����������.	���$�������
���	���
�����
������
�%��
���������������%��
�����������������$��
�����	���
�������������
��������
�+�
����
���
��������
�����������
��
�������������������
�����
�����������$�������,!�+*,��������
���
��������
�����������$���(�������������	��	����������������!��
��+-,��
���������������������	����
�������
������
���$���������������������
�����
�������$���������
��������&���
������������������
������������&�
����������
����������������&����������(��
����������������������
�
�����������
����������$�������������
�
�����������
������
�����
��������	�
���������	��&���
������������������
���
�������
���
���
�
����	����
�����
��������$�$����
��$�����������������
���

�����
�����������������
������	����
�����
���������������
�
�����������
����
�������/���
�������
������
�%���������(������
��������
��
���0	�
����
�������$��������1����)2



����������	�
���	����	
�������	��	��������	����������	�	��������	��������	������	������	�������	�������������	���	����������	�����
�	���	�����������	��	����������	��	����	������
	������	���	������
���	���	��	�����������	��	����	��	�	�����	���	���	������	����	��	������	���������	��	��	���������������	���	��	�������	��	��	��������������	������	���	��������	���
	����	������������	�����������	����
������	��	�����	���������������	�����	�����	��	��	������	�����������	������	��	�����	�����	�	
�������	�����	��	�����	��	��	����������	��	���	�����������	��	����	��	��	����������	���	�����	���	��	����	���	��	�����������	���	���	
�������
����	��	��	��������	��������	�����
����	���	��	
��	����	��	������	��	�	������	��	
�����������������	
���	��	��	��	���� �����
���	��	�����������	���	�����������	���	
����������	�	�������	���	����!���	��	������	��	�����	�������	���	����

����������	 �����
���	��	����	�����������	���	�����������	���	���������	������	������	��	��	��	��������	��������	�������	�����������	������
�����	������
����	�������	��	����	�������	�������	��	��	��"�������	���������	��	��	#�����	��"�������#	�������	��	���	�������	���	��������������	��������	��������	��	��	����������	�������	��!��	��	�������	����������	�������	���	����

���������	���������	���
	����	�������	�����������	������
�����	������
����	�������	��	����	������
����	��	��������	$��	���	����	�����������	���	���������	
�����
�����	�����	��	���	�������	��������	������������	���	����

����������	��	����	��	����	�������	����������	�������	���	��	�������	���	���	��	��
���	���	���
��	���	���������	���	�����
������%&'()*'+,+-+.+&'	/*0	-+1+./.+)*'	2&-/.&0	.)	*)*/30+.	'&24+5&'6��	���	��������	��������	��	
��	�������	��	����	
�����
���	������	��	����
�	���	
�����
���	����������������7	�������	��	��������	��	�����������	��	�����������	����������	�����	������	
�����
����	��	���������	��������	�!����	!���������	���8��	����������	��	����������	���	�������	��	��������7	��������	��	���9����	���	�������	��	��	��������7	���	������	��������������	���	��	�������	��	��	���������	 �����
���	��	����	�����������	���	��������	���	����	����	���	�������	���	��
�����	���	���	���	���	��������	���������	�����
�����	��	�������	��	���������:'&	);	<*/*5+/-	'./.&1&*.'=����	���	������	��	�������	��	�����������	��	���������	����	��������	�����
����	���	���	���������	������>�?	������	��	�	������	�������	�����
���	��	����	��������	��	�9����	��	����	�����������	���	�����	���	��	���	�����	��	����������	��	��@�����	���	������	��	�������	�������	���	��	���	��	���	������	��	���	�	������������	��	��������	����
����	A�	����	�����
����	��	���	����	�����������	�����	��	����	��@�����	���	������	��	�������	�������	���	��	���	��	���	������	����	�����	��	���	������
��	��	����������	��	��������	���������	��	��	�����
��������	��	��	������	��	��@�����	���	������	��	�������	��	��	���	��	���	�������	��	����	��	��9�����	��	������
	�������	����������	����������	���	���	��
����	���	>�?	�������	����	�����
�����	������������	��	���������	��	��	������������	�����
���	��	����	��������	����
���	���	>�?	�����9����	�����	�����������	����	����������	����	��	����������	��	������
���	��������	���	��������	���
	���	�����	������
����	���	��	����	����	���	�����������	��	��	������	��	��@�����	���	������	��	�������	��	��	���	��	���	�������	���	�����	���	��	����	��	��������	��	���	������������	��	�����	��������	
��������	���	��	����	�������	�	��
�����	���	��	����	����
�����	��	��	������	���	��	��@�����	���	������	��	������	��	������	���	�������	��	��	���	��	���	�������	���	
��	��	��9�����	��	������	������	��
	��	�����	�������	�������	��	���	�����	��������	���	���	��
	����	��!���	����	���	���	���	���������	A���	��	���������	�������	
��	��9����	������	��	���	���!������	���	����	��������	��	���	�����	��	����������	��	���
��	���	������� B���	C	��	DE



���������	�
����
������������������	�������������
����������
���������
������	�����
��������������	�������������
�
��������	
�
�����
�����	�����	�����	
������������������
���	� �
	���������������
���������������	�����	�����	
�������������
��������������
�����
�������	������
������������	���
��
��������������
������
���������
����������������������������������!�����
������	���������	��������������"��
������	�����������#����	�
��������������
��	����������������������������	��	����������������	��	������
����������������
���	���	��
����������	�
��������	�����	���������������
�����������������	������
�������	���	����
������	�����������#����������������	��	���������	�����	���	����
��������
������	
������������$
���	���	��������������	��
���
����
���
���������
���������
���������������
�����
��������
������������������
����������	��
������������	�����
����	�����
����������	�������	�����
������������	����������������	��
���
�����	��������������
��	
�����
���	���
�����������	���	�������	������	� �
	������	��������
���	���
��������
����
���������
�����	��������
��	���������
��������������	�
���	���
���
�����������	��
���
����
��������	
�
������������$������
������	��
�
��	���	���������
�����������������������	����	�	��
��������	��
�
��	���	���������
����������������������������	��
�������	��
��	
�����%&'(')*)&+�(,*-&-.+/(+-0&�(&,�0+1)/�*(++)/.$���2�����������
����	����
��
���������3435$������	��������������	������������
����	���	����������	���
������������������������������
���������������	� ����������
�������������������������	�
���
���������������������	�����
������
������
���	���
�������2���������������	���	����
����������������	� �
	����
�������	��
����
��������	����������
���
��$���
����	��
������
��������	�	���	�������������
��6�������	�������������
��	������
������	��
��	
���
����������	���	����������������
��������������7������	���	
�������������	�	������
�����	������
�
�����������
����	�����
�
���
���	���
�������
��������	�	���	����	����������������
��������	�����
��
������
��8������
������������
�����	���
�������������
����������������2����
����	���	�������������������
��������������
��������	��	
���	��
���	���
���9�����	�����:�����������
���������������	������
��������
������������
����������	��	
����
��
�
�������
��������������
�����������	� ���������
�����
����������	�������
��	�
��!���������	����	;��<�������	�
������
������������	�����������	��
�
����
	�����	�
��
	��������
�����	�����7!�=���	���������������
�
���<�������	���	����������� ���
���	��
�������������
������	����������
�����
������	������		���������	�
����	������
�
�
�
���$���
������
�������������������	� ��������	� ��������������������������
������������
����
�������	��
��������	���������	�
�
������������	�������>�	���	��	��������	� ��������������	��
������
����	������	��
����	�
�������������������
������������
�������������	�����
�������	�
���8�������	�
�������
��������	����
��������
��	
������������
����	�
���	���
��������
�������	�
���������	���
�����
�������	�����	�������������
��8������
������������
�����	���
��������������
������	���
������	����
�
����������������	������	�����	���	��	�������������	���	��������
�
�������	
���	� �����������������
��	�
��!���������	����	;��<������������	�����	�������������	����	�����������	�
���������������?��	��������
�����	����
����
���������
���������
��#����@����A4



���������	���

��������	�������	������	������	������������������������	����������	���������	�����������	����������	������
�����������	����	�������	����	�	��	�������	��	������������	��	��������	�����	�	��	����	����������������������������	����������	�����	
��	����������	���
�	��
���	�������������
����������������	�	��	��	������	��	��������	����	�	�����	�	���	���	��	��	�������������������������������������������������������	��������
	�	�����������	����	������������������������	�	��	��	������� 	�������!���	�������	��
���	�����	���������������	��	������"�����������	����	�	������������������"���
	��	������	����	���������
���������
�����	���	����	����	��������	�	��	��	��#�����

��	��	�������
	�����������������
������������	�����	�������	�	�����	���	��$��������	����	�	��	��������	
��	��������������	���	�����������������
��	����	�����������	��	��	�	����

��	����	����	���	��	����	�	�����	�	�������������������������	��	����	�	����

��	����	��	��������	�����	�����%$&���������	����	�'()*+,-*,.�/012.2,3�4.5,15+16��	����	�����	���"	����������	�	��	7	���
��		���	��	���	�������
��
������
��
	����	��	����������	����������	���	�������89�����	�����:������:�;<<=$�������	������
��		����

����	7�		��>?@�?@A�����������
��	���	�	���B������������	������	�	��
		��������	����	�������	������������	������	�����������������	�����	
������	�����������	�����
��������	��	�	�������	���������	��������	��	�	�����	��
	���C���	��	��	�	���	�����	��������
��
	�����	���	���	����	�������	����������	���	��		������	7�	��	����

�
�"	
���	�����	���$���������	������
���������
����
	���	�����
���
��7	�����

��	��	��	�	��	���������������"������	��	��������	������
	������	�	������DEFEGHIHJFG<K�=<LMHI<=&	��������������	�	�����	������	��		�����	��������������
��	����	���	��������	��	�����	���������
		���N	
�����	�
�����������	����	��������	�	�����	������	��	�����	��������	����	�	���C������������	����	��		������	�����
		���	���	��	��������������		��������	����	������	����	���

��		����	���	�	���	�����������	��	��	����	��������������������	�	��	��	��C�����������	���	���

���������������������	�������������	������
	�����	����������������	��	����	��&	���

���

����������	��	����	����	���������	����	���	���������
��	����	������		���	�����	��OPFEQ<=�HE�<EQFQ<R<EG�GHRHEQ�FEK�F==H=GFEI<�ST�TUVL�J<L=UEE<W��	��		�	����	�������	������������	������	�����������������	�����	
������	�����������	�������	
����	����������������������������	��	�	�����	��
	���C���	��	��	�	���	�����	��������
��
	�����	���	���	����	�������	����������	���	���

������	������	�	�����������
���	���������������	��	�	�������	����	������������������	���	
�����X7���
	�������������������������	�����	����	���		�������	��	����
��	YZ %����������	
��������	����������������	��	���������������������������	�����
�����������	����������������	��	�	�����������������	�������	�����������	������������������	�������	���Z [	���	��
���������	
����" ���	�\����]A



� ��������	�
����
��	������	��	�
�
���
���	�����
��	����������	���
��	���������	����	���������	���
������	����� �����
��
��	�	�
��
�����	������	��	������	���
�	������������ ���������	������	��	����	��������	����	��	���	������
��	��	���	�������	�������  �������	���
�
���	��	
�������
��	���	���������	���
���	��	����	��������� !�����
��	�����
��	����������	���	�������
��	������	
�	���	�
��	����� "��#	��	���
���
�
��	��	���
��	��������	���
��	���
�	�������#$%&'(	)''*+��	����	�����	��	���������	��	���	���	�
��	���	�,������	
�����
��	�
��	���	�,�����	��	�����	��������	��	���	
����	
�	������
��	��	�
�������	��-�����	��	���
�
��
��	��	�	�
�����	��	������
��	
�	���	������	�����������	��	�����	������
���	����	��	���	��#��	��	������	��	��	����	�������./'01'2%'3	24(256*%7/2'*8�	�
��	���
��	���	
�	���,�����	�
�����������	��-�
��	�
��
�����	���
�
����	���������	������
��	
�	�	��������
��	
�������	
�	���	���	���
�����9&7/:'*	4/	722;5/%4/:	7/3	7534%	*%7/37(3*��������	�������	���	����������	����
���	��	��������	���	���
��	����������	����	�������	���	������	
�	���	��	���
���	�����
��	�����
��	���	�
��������	��-�
�������	��	�,���	���	�������	�
�
���	���	����	��	���	���
�
�
��	��	���	��-�
���	��	�������	<�	���	�,����	����	���	������	��	�
��	��-�
���	��	���
��	���	����
���	�����
���	
�	���	�=8	
��������	���	��	����	��������	���	���	���	����	��	��	���������	8�	�
��	�
�����	����	�
�����������	�
��	���	�
��	��	������
��	���	���
�
����	���#�>:(''6'/%8�	����
���	���	������
��	��	���
��	��	���	���	����
���	�����
���	
�	��
�	�=8	�����	���	?������
����	����
���	@��������	���	���
���	��
�	�=8	����������	������
A��	���	�
��
�����	�����	��	���	���
�	�����������	<�
�	�=8	���	���	?������
����	����
���	@��������	�����
����	���	���
��	���������	������
��	�����	����
���	���	���������	���	�
��	����������	��������	����	��	��
������	����������
����	�����
��
����	���	�
�����
���	�������	���	���	B"@	�������	��	���
�	����
����	��	���	����	���	-����
����	�����	���	��	#����	?�����	�
���	�����	���	������	��
�	�=8	��	��	��	
��
����	����	��#�����������	���	����������
��	���	���	���������	�
���	���	������������	���	���	���
�	��	����	�����
��	����������	
�����
��	���	�����	��	���	����������	���	���	���
��C	������
��	������
�
�
�
����
��������	9D4)%;/E7(*;/>DD'/	EEFG'*1;/*'H<�
�	������	���������	����	�����	���	����������
��	��	I
����	B
��	���
����	J
���
��� ?���	K	��	LM



��������	

���	����	�����������������������	� ��������� 	!���"!�#	��"	�!�$�
"���"%&'()*!����$�����+,	������
����"-./0)

�	1��23�,4�23



��������	
�������������������������	�����������	
�������������� �!"!#��$%�&$'(�)�*$"+,- �,$#��!'.,/!01����2��3�����������3���	���	����������
4�567896:���������
;��	��	��	22�23������3
�����
	�����
�������	��7
;�����<
������	2�=>�	�2�=������������	
������������56����6�6��6�63��6�	�2�6�3
6:�	�2���2�	>����>�7	���	
>�?���
����56>�3�6�6>�3
�6��
�6�������>6:�2	�2�@	�3	
>�A�������9�	
���	�2�������B
���3
�3�2
��	�2��<��������
���	�2��=C���;������3
��<	<����	�2�����	�3
�	�2������	�������������
;��������������
�;�2���
��������>�	�����	�2���
����>	
��22�@3�����������D	����E	2
�	��
��������FG����
������=����
�����
��
�	���������������	������<	<����HIJKLIMN�OMJMPQJR�STJTIUIMTS9�������
�	
����B�	���	����	�����������2�	>����>�7	���	
>�?���
���������������
������B�	���	����	�������2���B2�=��������=�����322���������
���
��
�=2�=>��	����
��	�7�	������
���
V��8�B���	�2��
��
��	�������	������<	<���������
�������������B�	���	����	�������7���	��?���
�����F��	���	��1
	��	�������E��
��5�
��	��
�
�

2����	��B�	���	����	�����:W#X X!"!#��$YZ!/�,.!01���=C���;������3
��<	<����	
�����[[��
�	
����B�	���	����	���������	���
2	�����������
\3�
������
��
�=2�=>�����	����
��	�7�	������
���
V��8�B��=	�2��������
�	������
�;�22�=>�>�3����[[�����>�	���3����<�	�2�B�	���	��
��
���<�]�
�������	������>�3��������
���	�����������B�	���	����	�����������3��3�2
�	4��<�����=�	����
��
�;�2�	�>�	��3
	�����	����
�	
�����	�
�	����2�B�	��������	�����3�2�=��	2�������B�	���	����	����������
2
���
��������=����	���
2	�����������
\3�
������
��
�=2�=>�����	����
��	�7�	������
���
V��8�B��_̂'�'!0+$#0,Y,-,�,!09���������23����3
��<	<�������	���
2	��������7�	���������7�	�2	
2����
�����3����<�	�2�E;���7
;����577�E7�:��
��3�<	�2�=>��������3����<�	�2�E;���7
;��������������������
��	���̀����3������
��B2��3=��������3��	����5�̀���:�	�2������>����������̀���V����2�����
�������	�����23��������32��<��������	���
��������������<
��>���=C���;��>���
�������	�����������	�2�23��	
��W#X X!"!#��+'$/!a_'!0� #a�-,",� �,$#09�	
�����
\3�
2�����	�2�����������;
��>����	��3
	�>��
���������������������
�	�����>�3�������
�;�2��	<������b



������������	�	
���		
��������	����	�����	��	���	
�	�������	�������	����	���	���
���
����
��
��������
������
���������
������	������
���	���	����
����
��
������
������
��
���������	��
��������
�	��
���	��
�
���������		
����
���
�������		
������
�������
������	
���		
����

����	��	��	�����
������	
���������������	��
���
�
���������		
��������		
�����
�����
������	�����	��������������	��������������	
���������������	��
�����
����
�������
���	�	
��������
�
������
�	������������
���	�������
����	����	�
���	���
��������������	
������
�����
����	��	���	
��	���
�������
�	�
�����
���������������������	
���		
����������		�������	�������
����	��	���
����	������
��������		
����
���	�	
��������
�
���������		
���������	����
�����	
�����������	�����������	��	�	
�����
����	��������������� !"�#$%&"'���������������	
���		
����	����������	����	�������������������	�������	�����
�������������	��	����	��
�
���������		
����
���������������
������	����
���	���	����
����
��
������
������
��
���������	��
��������
�	��
���	�������	�����������
�����	��������	��
�
���������		
�����	���	���	���
��������
�	��������	��	(���		
�����	�����	�������	�)������
���*���	�)�
�����	��������	���
����	�
����
�	
�	������	�����	�	
�����
��
��������
�	�����������
��
�����
����	���	
	���������	��	���
���	�+
��	��*���	������	������,�	��	�����������
����	�������		
���������	��	���������
�	
�	�����	���������	��
�������
��
����	�����
��		
�������	������	����������	�
�
�	�����	��������
���	�	
������)������
���*���	�)�
�����	��������	��
�����
����
�	
�	������	��
���������
����	���	������
��
	����	�����
���	�	���	���	�������	��,�	�	�����	���������
�	���
���������	��	������������	����������	��	��	�������
����
�	
���-��������
���	���
���	���	��
���	��������	�	���	����������
����������
�
���������		
�����	������
�������	����	������
����������		
���������	�������������	
���		
���./0/1$2$0'�"$3%&0345464'4$3,�	�	
���		
������	��	����	�������
����	���
���	����������������7�
��		
���
�����	
�����������	������	������	����������	�
�
�	8���9
���	��	���
���
�	����
���������������	���������	���	��
�
���������		
����
��������
�	��������	��	(���		
�����	�����	�������	�)������
���*���	�)�
�����	��������	��
����������
��		
���
���	���	�	
�����
������	��
�
���������		
����
��������
�	��������	��	(���		
�����	�����	�������	�)������
���*���	�)�
�����	��������	��:�
��		
����
������	������	����������	�
�
�	���������������	�����	���	��������
����	������	���
��������	���������	���
��	
������������
�	���9�
����	�	
���		
���
��������
�	������**�;*�<��==�,�	��	�	����
������	��
�
������	�����
�����	���9�����	������	���
���	���	�������
������	��
�
���������		
����
���	�	��
�
���������	��
�
������	�����
�����	���9�������	�����	��
���	���������
�	����==�,�	���	�������
��
���������	�	
�����
������	��
�
���������		
����
��������
�	��������	��	(���		
�����	�����	�������	�)������
���*���	�)�
�����	��������	����==�,�	��
������
���������
�������	����������	���	(���	������	��
����	���
���	�������	�����	�������	�)������
���*���	�)�
�����	��������	��������������	�� >��	�?����@



�������������	
�
�	���
�����������	
�����	����
�	������������������������������	���������	
�
�	���	�����	
�	�	������	
��	����	
���������	
�
�
����������
�	��	������������	
�
�	����	�	������
�
���	
��
��
����������������
����������
�
���	
�����
��������
�����������������������������	
�	��	����
��
�	�����������������	�����
��
�
����	
�
������������
��
���������	��������
�	�������������
��
����
���
�����������������������	�������
�	������
����������������	
��������	�
�	����	��
�����	����
�	���	�����	�����	����	
�������	
�������������
�������
����	������	
���������������������
��
��������	������������
������	����
�	�������	
�
�
����������
�	��	������������	
�
�	���
����	�	������
�
���	
������������������������	
�
�	���	��
������

������������
�	����	����
�	�
��
���������� ���
������
������������
����	������	
�����!	���
���
����������
�����	����
��	�
����	
�
����
�����������
����	���
�	���������
�����	���
���"#$%&'$()(*(+(#$�,'-�*(.(+,+(&'$�/#*,+#-�+&�,00&1'+('2�$#/3(0#$4����������	
�	�������������������������
������	�����	��
����������
�	��������	�	������
�
���	
�����	�����	
��������
��������������	�����	
�����	������
���5��������
��������������������	�
�	���	��	�����������������������
��	���	�����	�����	
�����������������
������6�����6	���������	�7���������	���
��	����
�	���	���������
�����������5�������
��
������ ������	�������
����
�����������5��	�������
�����	������
�����
��������
����
�������������8�	�����	
������������	����������	����	��
��
�������
���	������������������
���	��
��
�������������������������	
��	����
�	�
��������
������������9$#�&:�;','0(,*�$+,+#.#'+$�����	�	������
�
���	
���	�����������
�	�����
�
����	����������	�����	
<�������=������	
�	��
�����������	����������
����	�	������
�
���	
���	���������
�
����	��
�������
���������������	�
������	
���
���=	�����	���
����	�	������
�
���	
���	��������	
�����������	��		��������
����	������	�������	
������������	��	�����
��������������������
��������	
��>����������	������
�����������
������
�	�
��
������������������	
�������������	����?�
���������
�
�������
�	����������	�
�	����	�	������
�
���	
��
��
���������	�������
���
���������
�	��	������	
���	�����	���	�	������
�
���	
����������������
�	�������	����������
�������	����
�	��
��
�����
�	�����
������������	��
����
����
���	����
�	��	���
����������������	
��� ������
������
����	����
�	��	
��	����	�
������
�����
��	������
����	���
�	�����
�����	����
�	��	�
�������
�	�����
����
��
�������	��������	
���?���������������������	��������
��	�	������
�
���	
��
��������������������	���������	��������
��	�	������
�
���	
��������	
�����������	������
����
���� @����A���B



������������	�
�
�����
����	���������������������������������������������������������� ����!�!�����������"����������# ����������$�����%����������������������� ��������&�' ����!�!������������������%��(����� ����!����������&���(���������������%������"�����!"��$����# �����������$������������)�������!�!�����&�*"���������������������������"���������!�!�����������$��!�%������$(������)������+��,'-������"������%���&�.���' ������������������������������������/0)123&�*"���������������$�������������������������������������(� �����������������"������������������"��������!���# ��������� ������������������!���# ��������"�� ���&�4���"����# ���������������������%����$�������"����������# ������������������� ����)��"���������������������������5��(�$��"�!"��&�' ����%�����)����� ���!��������$������������������������)������$��������������"�����"�������5����!�����������������(�$������������������&6��78�9��	�9
�9:�����9��-���������%����(� ���� �������������� �����������# ������!��+���������������������� ������� ����!������� $����������������������"��������������&�;�������
���99:��
�����	�<<=><�,����������������������! ������������� ������%�� �������������(����������&�, �"��"��!�����(���� ���������������%�����+����������������!������������ �����# ��������������������"����� ��)������!)���������������"������%���������������# ���������������&�*���"����������"����"����� �������������# �����������%�����"�����%�����������$�������"��,'-������������ ������ �"��"��!��)�� ��������(���������$����? ����&�-����������� ���� �"����� ������������"�(� �������������������!��"����������������5&�=��������-��������������"�������� ���(�������%�������(� ��"�����%�����������$�������"���,'-� ������"��@������������,��%������!������������$����%���"���,'-���� �����(�� �����A����"����!��+��������������� ����������������!�!�����&�*"���,'-������"��@������������,��%������!��������������� ����"����������!����������!�����!��"�������%���������� ��������������������!���������B�"��"������������������C)� �����������!�)���!���������)��������� �������$�������(� �����DE����������������������������%����&�4��(� �"�%����(�# �������)������������ ��5���&�@��������!�)�����)�������� ����"���,'-���� ��������������(� ����5������!��������� �����������!���)������!�����������")��"�������!������������ ����!�!�����������������(� ��+��������������������������������������������������!�!���������"�������������"���������+�������������������)������"���������F���������%����������$�������&�,�������()�;G
H��I����=GG���IIJ
@�!��K����2



��������	

���	����	�����������������������	��������� !"#!"$" %�"&$#&$'�()�(*+
�,-./01��2	3���43�5	��4	�3�6�
4���4789:&;3����6�����<=	������
����4*>+?&

�	@��A�=B�A



��������	
�������������������������	����������������������� �!"�#�$%!��&#'(���)!�*�&'!�+,	
���-./�-0-1�2����3��4�����������4���	���	����������
5�6789:7;���	���
<��	��	��	33�34������4
�����
	��/��
�������	��8
<�����=
���/��	3�>?�	�3�>������������	
������������67���7/�7�/7�74�/7�	�3�7�4
7;�	�3�,�3�	?����?�8	���	
?�@���
����67?�4/7�7?�4
/7��
�7�������?7;�3	�3�A	�4	
?�B/�-0-0��:�	
���	�3�������C
���4
�4�3
��	�3��=��������
���	�3��>D���<������4
��=	=����	�3�����	�4
�	�3������	�������������
<��������������
�<�3���
��������?�	�����	�3���
����?	
��33�A4��10/�-0-1�E	����F	3
�	��
/����/��GH����
������>����
�����
��
�	���������	=
3I4�����
��34
���=	=����JKLMNO�LPQNKRSTNO�UVW�XNYMLVYSPSZSRSNY:������	���?����	=
3I4�����
��34
��������,�3�	?����?�8	���	
?�@���
����	�3�����	=4�����	����
��	�������6	���
���3��������	=4��4>���	����������3�7�
�����[\\\I]����
��
�	�������������̂���
��_4�3����7;��	������C3�	�3�	=
3���/�����3�������	��	��3����34�/����������
��
�	������������:�
5����̀��a����@���
����	������
���
����?	
��33�A4��10/�-0-1��@���
�������
������>����
�������
��
�	������������:�
5����̀��a���94
��=	=�������	���?�	=
3I4�����
��34
�������>����34��3����	���
3	��������	����	�������	�3	
3����	>����3�>?������
��	��\�����4������
��C3��4>��������4��	�����2������	�3	
3��
b4�
�4�����>���3��3�������������?��
�
������>���	
�?/�	��	�����	>�/��	�3��������4
����
�����	��
������>������/����	���
3	�����������
�<	�������	��
b4�
�����
�	���=�����4
��=	=������,�3�	?����?�8	���	
?�@���
����	=
�����	�3�	�5����3=������
��34
���
��
�3��
����>��
��
�3�	
�	��
��
�	����
��������33��4
����������
b4�
��������8������.�c�����
�����[\\\I]��������	����
��	��������4������2������33�4�
��������	=
3I4�����
��34
��
��
��	
�]�	
3����@�
���
��	�3��	�	=����������@���
�����\���33�4�
�����	33���������,�3�	?����?�8	���	
?�@���
�������	?�>�
b4��3����	=
��������
��34
��	�3�	�5����3=���	������
��34
���
��
�3�	
�	��
��
�	����
��������33��4
���������b4���?/����	5����
�
���	�����
=	
3��=����	��
��
�	������������
��34
���4�
	�3�������	��	��3����34�����
���
�����4
������
������������
��
���	��>��
b4��3��
���
�	�?����
��4
�����2������33�4�
��	��4�����
��5���	���4����
��34
����=���>���	��
��
�	����
��������33��4
����	�3����
��5���	����?���=������4�3
��	�3��
����
������	��
��
�	��?�4��C�3��=���
��
�?�
��
�3�>?������94
�
������>����?��������
��
���������C3��
��34
��	�3�
��
�����C�3��=�����	���
3	�����������	����	�������	�3	
3���G�
��4
��������
��
���=�C�3��=�/�?�4�����C3�	���
����3����d.00���
�
��
���=��	=�.����e



���������	
�����	��������������������������	���	������������������	������������������	������������������������������������������������������		��������������������	���������������������������	�����������	�������������������	����� 	�!������	�������	�����"��������	��������	���������	�������#
���	��������������������		��������������������	������������##��������		��#���	����� 	����������������������!��������������������"�����������#
�$����������������������%��������������#�����"����������	�%�"�������	����	������������������	�������
�������������	�����#����������������"���������������������������������	��������������������������	�"������������������������������������������������	����#�������������������#���������������������	���#��������������������#������%��������"��������%������#��������		�"������������	��������������������������������	������������������������������������	����#�������������������#��������������	�	
����������		������������������������������������#���������������������	�	��������������	����#�������������!�����	
�&��	���������	����������	����"�#���������#������������	���#�������#���������	��������������#�������	����������	����������%���	���%"��"������������������	����!��������	
�$#��#����"���	������������%����������������������������	������������	���%���"���	��������	�����������#��������#��������������	�����������������������������		����������������������#�������	����������
�'������������������������	�������������������������������#������������������������	�������������	����������������������������������������������%����������������"��
�������������������������	������������	�������	������������������	����	��#�#���������������������������	�������������	(��������������������������������"����"����������	�	�������#���������������������������	�������������	�##���������������������������	�����������	����������������������������������������		����"���������"������	�)������
�$������������#������������������������	�����������������	��������������������������������������������������������	�����������	���������������������	���	�����	�������	��������������
�*������	���	���	���#��"���"���������		���"�����������������	���������������������������������������������#������������������������	�������������������������
��+���������	���	���	�%���#��������������	������,-.����		���������#���������#�������"���������������	��������������������������������	�����������	�������������������������������������	��	����	�������	������������������������������	�����#������������"��������������		��#�������#�������(�,/.������������#����������������"���)��	��#������������	���#����#�������������������������������	(����,0.�����	�����������		�������	��	�����������������"�#�����������������������������		�"�����%���������������������������#��������������������	
�1�������������#�����	��#������	��������������#��	���	��������	�%	�)�����������������#���������������������	�����������	���������������"�##������������������������	�����������	���������
�2345467638�597:3:;8<58:=3�539�=8>6<�75886<;����	���#���#��������������������������#���������������������������	���)�����������%���������������	������������������
�?��������������	���	���"��#�"�������!�����������������"������������������#������������"����	��	�������������������@������#�"��������������������		���)������%"���
�&��	����!��������"������	�������	����������%����	�#������	���	����"������#������������������������#�����#!�������������	���������������������	������	�����"���������)��	����#�����	����#�����"�	����#!�����������"
���"�	����#!�����������"�A���/��#�B



������������	�
�������������������
������������������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������������������������������������������������
��
��� ���������������
��!""#��������������������������������$
����%&'(�������������������������������
�������
������������������������������������������������
���������
������������������
�������������������������������
���������)�������������������������������������������������������������������������

���������������������$��������������*������������������������
������
������������
�����������������
�����$�����������������������
�������������*��������������������������������������������+,-""."/0 �������
�����������������������������������
���������������������������� ��

�������������1�������������
���������������������������������� ���������������������
�����
���2�����������������
�������������
����������������������������������������������������
��������������������������������������3�����������������������4���������������������������������������
������������������������56���)����������������������������������������*�����)�������������������������������������������������
���������������� ��������������������������������������
������
��������������
�������789:0;/<=-#;/+88"/�<<>

2����?����@



��������	

���	����	�����������������������	� ��������� 	!���"!�#	��"	�!�$�
"���"%&'()*!����$�����+,	������
����"-./0)123�45���67�8962�459�:��6�;��8�9769<�4�769��3��=�:2>��?�>9�@�4��A�B5���CDE�FDFCG H�� ����,I"	���"����,����"�������,���	"�,�
�����"�H,�J
���"�K,L�M�N,��"���!�	��������OP���QR��SRSQ��	����,��	���"�������"�	���	��P	��	�TP
"���"�N	�",�
�����P�������"�	"� ,�J
���"�",�"�������"�	���	��P	��	�TP
"���"�N	�",�
�"�	"� ����	�,�"���I!���
,�P"�,��,N�"���+,	���,N�$����",�
L�H��	�
,��,��	���"����,�P�	"�,��	�����U	"�,��,�"�,�
�����P�������"���	N,�����"�,���� ,�J
���"�",�"�,
��"�	"� ����
����"���I!�	����,�����V,"��,N�"���+,	���,N�$����",�
LG �,��"�������,���	"�,�
�����"�H,�J
���"�K,L�M�� �� ����	����	
"�!�	�W
�����"�",�"���","	��	�TP
"���"
��	����,��	���"�����
P�"��X�	�,P�"�",�"��
�!�	�W
�����"L�H�� ����	�
,����	��P�	"��"���	�TP
"���"�N	�",��	���"���	�TP
"���"�N,����U	"�,��	����,�P�	"�,���	����,��	���"�����
P�"
�",�"���	�,P�"
�,��H,�J
���"�K,L�MLG H�� �����,��	���"������,��!�	��	���,���	"�,�
�����"����
��"������"���	��,��	�!��X�����,���	"�,�
�����"�H,�J
���"�K,L�M�",�"������,��!�	��	���,���	"�,�
�����"�	�,�"���I!�"���+,	���,N�$����",�
�N,��"������,��!�	�L

�	X��Y�,N�Y



 

 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM 7B 
 

Date:   April 4, 2023 
 

To:   Board of Directors 
 
Prepared by: Leanne Luu, Admin Secretary/Human Resources Coordinator 

 
Subject:   Approve Request of Solid Waste Driver Robert Mayfield to Receive 40  

hours of Vacation Pay in Lieu of Time Off Due to Financial Hardship 
 
BACKGROUND 

Robert Mayfield began working at the District in November 1996 and currently 
receives 25 days of vacation per year. Under the 2015 Employees Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) effective July 1, 2015 employees are eligible for vacation 
payout in lieu of time off under the following requirements:  
 

The MOU States: 
 

ARTICLE 5 
 
Vacation Leave 

G.  The policy of the DISTRICT is to encourage full utilization of vacation time 
off by all employees.  However, each December, an employee may file an 

irrevocable request to cash-out up to eighty (80) hours of vacation leave.  The 
DISTRICT shall pay each request in the first paycheck of January of the 
following year.  In order to be eligible for this cash -out, the employee must 

have a remaining balance of at least forty (40) hours of accrued vacation after 
cashing-out and must have taken a minimum of forty (40) vacation hours in the 

prior twelve (12) months.  Upon an employee’s showing of an unforeseen 
financial hardship, the Board may grant an additional request that an 
employee be paid his/her regular rate of pay in lieu of taking up to forty (40) 

hours of his/her vacation time off in eight (8) hour increments.  A decision on 
such a request is at the sole discretion of the Board of Directors and shall be 

decided on a case-by-case basis.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Board review approve Robert Mayfield’s request to receive 40 
hours of vacation pay in lieu of time off due to financial hardship. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Forty (40) hours at employee’s current rate of pay is $1,188.80   

 
Attached: Letter from Robert Mayfield RE: Financial hardship 



                                                                             P a g e  1 | 2 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9A 
 
Date:   April 4, 2023 
 
To:   Board of Directors 
 
Prepared by: Robert Housley, General Manager 
 
Subject:  CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2023-09 OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF THE MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT OF ORANGE 
COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING AMENDED PURCHASING 
POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

             
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
The Midway City Sanitary District purchasing policies and procedures were last updated 
in June of 2017.  It is best practice for the Board to review its policies from time-to-time 
and to update them accordingly.  Staff has prepared proposed updates the purchasing 
policies and procedures for the Board’s consideration.  The proposed changes are shown 
in the redline comparison included as Attachment 1.A proposed Resolution adopting the 
updated policies and procedures, which includes a clean copy of the updated document, 
is included as Attachment 2.  
 
The proposed changes are intended to update relevant definitions and references, modify 
purchasing thresholds to reflect increased costs, incorporate changes in state law since 
the last revision, and provide additional clarity and criteria for contract evaluations and 
approvals. Procurement policies are a balance between accountability, transparency, and 
efficiency.  Staff believes that the proposed changes achieve all three of those criteria.   
 
Substantive changes are summarized below: 
 

1. General Manager’s Purchasing Authority – Increases the General Manager’s 
approval authority for purchases of goods and services from $20,000 to $40,000. 
 

2. Change Orders – Establishes new authority for the General Manager to approve 
change orders up to the cumulative amount of 10% of the awarded contract or up 
to $15,000, whichever is greater, or as otherwise expressly authorized by the 
Board of Directors.  
 

3. Indemnification Agreements – Establishes express authority for the General 
Manager to enter into agreements providing for indemnification of the other party 
when the value of the agreement is within the General Manager’s purchasing 
authority or the agreement is for the District’s use of public or private property. 
 

4. Small Contracts – Increases the threshold for when bidding is not required for 
purchases of goods and services from $5,000 to $10,000. 
 



                                                                             P a g e  2 | 2 
 

5. Informal Bidding and RFP Procedures – Clarifies the procurement procedures for 
professional services and the informal bidding procedures purchases of goods and 
general services valued between $10,000 and $125,000. 
 

6. Prevailing Wage Contracts – Updates the provisions pertaining to Prevailing Wage 
Contracts to reflect changes in State law and to provide additional direction and 
clarity to staff and contractors. 
 

7. Public Works Contracts – Clarifies procedures for bid solicitations, openings, and 
evaluations and adds procedures for bid protests. 
 

8. Contractor Registration – Adds language to clarify that all contractors must be 
authorized to do business in the State, County, and City and properly registered 
with the Secretary of State. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff Recommends the Board either (1) adopt Resolution No. 2023-09, adopting the 
amended Purchasing Policy and Procedures, as proposed, or (2) provide alternative 
direction to Staff.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No significant fiscal impact is anticipated. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Redline Showing Proposed Changes to Purchasing Policy and Procedures 
2. Proposed Resolution 2023-09 Approving Amended Purchasing Policy and 

Procedures (clean) 
 

 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

1 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

Section 1:  Introduction 
 
This policy shall be known as the Midway City Sanitary District’s (District) Purchasing 
Policy and Procedures (Policy).  Its purpose is to: establish policies and procedures for 
the purchase of Goods, Services, and the award of Contracts for Public Works Projects 
at the lowest possible cost commensurate with the quality needed; exercise positive 
financial control over purchases; ensure the District complies with state laws governing 
the award of Contracts for Goods, Services and Public Works Projects; and clearly define 
authority for District purchases. 
 
Section 2: Administrative Rules and Procedures 
 
The General Manager and Finance/HR Director may issue and enforce such 
administrative rules and procedures as required and necessary to carry out the intent and 
purposes of this Policy.   
 
Section 3: Authorization by the Board of Directors 
 
The purchase of any Goods and/or Services having an estimated value greater than 
$20,000,40,000, and/or award of Contracts for Public Works Projects having an estimated 
value greater than $15,000, shall be subject to approval by the Board of Directors.  
Procurements shall not be artificially split or divided into different individual Contracts so 
as to keep each Contract amount below monetary thresholds set forth in this Policy.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the General Manager or Finance/HR Director may 
approve procurementsProcurements valued greater than the amounts specified above in 
emergency situations pursuant to Section 9, Paragraph E, and Section 10, Paragraph 
B.11., herein. 
 
Section 4: Specific Authorization for General Manager and Finance/HR Director  
  to Purchase and Enter into Contracts 
 

A. The General Manager and Finance/HR Director areis authorized to approve 
Procurements of Goods and/or Services having an estimated value of 
$20,000 40,000or less, and to award contractsContracts for Public Works 
Projects having an estimated value of $15,000 or less, without prior 
authorization from the Board of Directors.  The General Manager and/or 
Finance/HR Director shall require that such Procurements be made in 
conformance with the policies established herein.  The Board of Directors 
may require that the General Manager or Finance/HR Director provide 
periodic reports regarding Procurements made under such authorization to 
the Board of Directors at a regular meeting. 
 

B. The General Manager is authorized to approve Change Orders or 
amendments to Contracts for Goods and/or Services for changes or 
additions to the original scope of Goods and/or Services up to the 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

2 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

cumulative amount of ten percent of the awarded Contract amount or 
$15,000, whichever is greater, or as otherwise expressly authorized by the 
Board of Directors.  For Change Orders or amendments to Contracts 
approved by the Board of Directors, the General Manager shall inform the 
Board of Directors of the Change Order or amendment at the next regular 
Board meeting after it is authorized.   Except as set forth herein, changes 
to Contracts approved or awarded by the Board of Directors require Board 
of Directors’ approval. 

 
C. The General Manager is authorized to execute agreements on behalf of the 

District, in a form approved District Counsel, providing for indemnification 
by the District of the other party to the agreement (a) where the value of the 
agreement, other than indemnification, does not exceed $40,000 and Board 
of Directors’ approval of the agreement is not otherwise required, or (b) for 
the use of public or private property by the District, provided, however, that 
any such indemnity provision shall be specifically limited to claims, losses, 
damages, or injuries arising from the District’s use of such property. 

 
D. The General Manager and Finance/HR Director shall have the authority to: 

 
1. Determine the purchasing method(s) to be used, which shall be 

consistent with this Policy. 
 

2. Procure Goods, Services and/or award Contracts for Public Works 
Projects required by the District in accordance with the purchasing 
policies set forth in this Policy and/or as directed by the Board of 
Directors. 
 

3. Negotiate and recommend the execution of Contracts for the 
procurement of Goods, Services and/or Public Works Projects. 
 

4. Act to procure the needed quality in Goods and/or Services, along 
with the award of Contracts for Public Works Projects, at the least 
overall expense to the District. 
 

5. Delegate appropriate authority to District staff. 
 

6. Endeavor to obtain as full and open competition as reasonable onfor 
Procurements. 
 

7. Prepare, update, and implement rules and procedures consistent 
with this Policy governing the purchase of Goods, and Services, and 
the award of Contracts for Public Works Projects for the District. 

 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

3 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

Section 5:  Decentralized Purchasing 
 
The District’s purchasing system is decentralized in order to maintain a continuous supply 
of Goods and/or Services necessary to support the District’s operations and meet the 
District’s obligations to the public.  Each Originating Department is responsible for 
compliance with the District’s policies, procedures and any and all applicable laws. 
 
Section 6: Authorization for Payment(s) 
 
Authority to approve payments for Goods, Services, and Public Works Contracts will lie 
with the District General Manager and/or Finance/HR Director, subject to review by the 
Board Treasurer and approval and/or ratification by the Board of Directors at a Board 
meeting.  
 
Section 7: Encumbrance of Funds 
 
Except in cases of emergency, no Contract or Procurement shall be made for Goods, 
Services, or Public Works Projects unless an unencumbered appropriation in the current 
fiscal year budget can be identified, or unless authorized by the Board of Directors.  
 
Section 8: Ethics 
 

A. District personnel shall not accept gifts, rebates, kickbacks, personal 
services, or in any way incur personal gain from any Contractor, actual or 
potential, doing business with the District.   

 
B. No District employee or Board Member shall have a direct or indirect 

individual interest in any Contract or purchase of goods or services entered 
into by the District, or shall derive any personal benefit from the District’s 
purchase of Goods and/or Services.  Without limiting the foregoing, no 
District employee or Board Member shall make any Contract, participate in 
the making of any Contract, or in any way attempt to use his or her official 
position to influence any decision on any Contract, in violation of 
Government Code sections 87100 et seq. or Government Code section 
1090. 
 

C. No District employee or Board Member shall use the purchasing procedures 
to obtain property or services for personal use or by misrepresenting to 
Contractors that personal purchases are for the District (i.e., for the purpose 
of obtaining price discounts).  Notwithstanding the above, Mechanics in the 
Fleet Maintenance Department may personally purchase their own tools 
from Contractors which may be used in the maintenance of the District’s 
fleet.  These tools are the property of the individual mechanic, and the 
District has no obligation to purchase or replace tools personally bought by 
the employee. 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

4 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

 
Section 9: Bidding, Purchasing and Contracting for Goods and/or Services 
 

A. $5,00010,000 or less: 
 
No bidding is required for purchases that are $5,000Contracts for Goods 
and/or Services of $10,000 or less, which includesincluding all applicable 
taxes and shipping.  At the discretion of the General Manager or 
Finance/HR Director, at least two (2) quotes shall be obtained to ensure the 
lowest overall cost to the District.   

 
B. More than $5,000,10,000, and up to and including $125,000: 

 
TheExcept as otherwise provided in this Policy, the following Informal Bid 
Process is required for procurementsProcurements of Goods and/or 
General (but not Professional) Services, including taxes and shipping, that 
is estimated to be more than $5,000,10,000, and up to and including 
$125,000: 
 
1. AtWritten informal bids or proposals shall be solicited from at least 

three (3) vendors shall be asked to submit informal bids.  Notices 
inviting bids shall be mailed (email, faxed, et cetera) to vendors on 
the Qualified Bidders List or vendors otherwise identified by District 
staff not less than ten (10) days before bids/proposals are due.   
 

2. When soliciting informal bids, or proposals, District staff shall: (1) 
describe the Goods and/or Services in general terms; (2) advise 
vendors how to obtain additional information about the Goods and/or 
Services; (3) state the date, time, method and place for the 
submission of sealed bids/proposals; (4) for particular 
servicesServices, advise prospective vendors when the award will 
be based on the Best Value evaluation as determined by the Board 
of Directors or General Manager, as applicable; (5) advise vendors 
that the District may reject any and/or all bids or proposals received, 
and may waive any minor irregularities in each bid or proposal 
received; and (6) include any other information required by federal, 
state or local law, as applicable.   

 
C. Over $125,000: 
 

AExcept as otherwise provided in this Policy, a Formal Bid Process is 
required for procurements of Goods and/or General Services, including 
taxes and shipping, that is estimated to be over $125,000.  The District shall 
solicit formal sealed bids in accordance with the following procedures: 
 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

5 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

1. Publish a Notice Inviting Bids that contains (a) a description of the 
Goods and/or Services required, (b) a description of the selection 
process, (c) bidder's security requirement, if applicable, (d) 
performance bond requirements, if applicable, and (e) such 
provisions, terms, and conditions, consistent with this Policy, that are 
deemed necessary, desirable, and/or advantageous to the District; 
 

2. Open the bids publicly at the time and place designated in the Notice 
Inviting Bids, and record the amount of each bid; 
 

3. Determine whether the bids are responsive to the Notice Inviting 
Bids; and 
 

4. Take one of the following actions: 
 
(a) Award the Contract to the lowest Responsive and 

Responsible Bidder;  
(b) Reject any and all bids presented and/or re-advertise the bid; 

or 
(c) Declare that the Goods and/or Services may be acquired at a 

lower cost by negotiation in the open market and authorize the 
procurementProcurement in that manner. 

 
5. If two or more bids received are for the same total amount or unit 

price, the District may accept the one it chooses or accept the lowest 
bid made by negotiation with the tie bidders at the time of the award. 

 
D. Professional Services 
 
 To ensure the selection of Professional Services for private architectural, 

professional engineering, environmental, land surveying and construction 
project management services are based on demonstrated competence and 
on professional qualifications necessary for the satisfactory performance of 
the services required, the following procedures shall be followed for the 
procurementProcurement of Professional Services: 

 
1. $20,00040,000 or less 

For the Procurement of Professional Design Service Contracts 
Services  estimated at $20,000to cost $40,000 or less, the General 
Manager or Finance/HR Director shall informally request at least two 
(2) proposals from vendors providing the type of services needed.  
The General Manager shall engage the most qualified person or firm 
based upon demonstrated competence and on professional 
qualifications necessary for the satisfactory performance of the 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

6 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

services required, as determined in the sole discretion of the General 
Manager.  

2. Over $20,00040,000 

(a) AFor the Procurement of Professional Services estimated to 
cost more than $40,000, a Request for Proposals shall be 
issued for each Professional Service requested.  Multiple 
projects may be bundled into one Request for Proposals such 
that multiple Contract awards may result from one Request for 
Proposals and selection may be based upon specialized 
services. Each Request for Proposals shall require that 
proposals contain, at a minimum, the following information:  

i. The firm’s qualifications for performing the proposed 
work. 

ii. The firm's relevant experience and performance on 
similar projects. 

iii. A fee proposal, based on the method of compensation 
specified in the Request for Proposal, and an estimate 
of total fees. 

iv. The firm’s ability to complete the work within the time 
allotted. 

v. The personnel that will be assigned to the project. 

vi. A statement that the firm's engagement for the project 
would not create a conflict of interest. 

vii. Any other information required to properly evaluate the 
firm’s qualifications and experience with similar 
projects. 

viii. Proposals for construction management services shall 
demonstrate that the designated personnel have 
expertise and experience in construction project design 
review and evaluation, construction mobilization and 
supervision, bid evaluation, project scheduling, cost-
benefit analysis, claims review and negotiation, and 
general management and administration of a 
construction project. 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

7 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

(b) The District shall publicize each Request for Proposals by one 
or more of the following methods: 

i. Advertising in the publications of professional 
societies;  

ii. Mailing, electronic mailing, or faxing the Request for 
Proposals to each vendor who has submitted a 
Statement of Qualifications;  

iii. Mailing, electronic mailing, or faxing the Request for 
Proposals to at least three firms qualified to furnish the 
required services as identified in the Qualified Bidders 
List or as otherwise identified by District staff;  

iv. Posting the Request for Proposals on the District 
website; and/or 

v. Using other publication methods that may be beneficial 
to increasing the number of qualified proposals 
received by the District. 

(c) The General Manager and/or Finance/HR Director shall 
evaluate the proposals for the Board of Director’s review.  In 
his or her discretion, the General Manager may appoint an 
evaluation committee to evaluate the proposals. 

(d) All proposals shall be evaluated and ranked, from most 
qualified to least qualified, based on each firm's demonstrated 
competence and professional qualifications necessary for the 
satisfactory performance of the services required. 

(e) The General Manager and/or Finance/HR Director may 
conduct interviews of firms based on the proposal rankings in 
order to determine final rankings.  

(f) At the Board’s Direction, the General Manager and/or 
Finance/HR Director shall negotiate a Contract with the firm 
that the General Manager and/or the evaluation committee 
deems to be most qualified.  If the General Manager or 
Finance/HR Director is unable to negotiate a satisfactory 
Contract with the firm deemed to be most qualified, the 
General Manager or Finance/HR Director shall terminate 
negotiations with that firm and may negotiate with the firm 
deemed to be second most qualified.  If those negotiations 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

8 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

fail, the General Manager or Finance/HR Director shall 
negotiate with the third most qualified firm, and so on, until an 
agreement is reached or the General Manager or Finance/HR 
Director determines that it is in the best interest of the District 
to reject the remaining firms.  If the Board of Directors 
determines that it is in the best interest of the District, the 
Board of Directors may award more than one Contract to the 
most qualified firms or reject all proposals. 

E. Emergency Purchases for Goods and/or Services 
 

Where the Board of Directors, or General Manager or Finance/HR Director 
determines that an emergency exists, any one of them may authorize the 
purchase of Goods and/or Services without following the District’s 
procurement procedures set forth herein, including competitive bidding 
procedures and/or obtaining contracting approval as otherwise normally 
required.  If the emergency purchase is for Professional Services, such 
purchase shall be based upon a vendor's demonstrated competence and 
qualifications for the types of services to be performed at a fair and 
reasonable price.  For the purposes of this exception, emergency 
procurements are those purchases that are required to prevent immediate 
interruption or cessation of necessary services or to safeguard life, property, 
or the public health and welfare.  

 
For all emergency purchases that would otherwise require Board of 
Directors’ approval due to contract amount, or which would have otherwise 
required a Formal Bid Process or Informal Bid Process, the General 
Manager shall inform the Board of Directors of the Procurement at the next 
regular Board meeting after the purchase is authorized.   

 
F. Prevailing Wage Service Contracts 

 
Contracts over $1,000 for certain Services, including, but not limited to, 
installation, maintenance, or repair work, or certain other work done for the 
District, may be Prevailing Wage Contracts subject to the requirements of 
Labor Code section 1720 et seq. and other laws and requiring the payment 
of prevailing wages.  including, without limitation, requirements that 
Contractors be registered with the Department of Industrial Relations 
("DIR") and maintain certified payroll records, and that for Prevailing Wage 
Contracts over $25,000 involving construction, alteration, demolition, 
installation, or repair work, and Prevailing Wage Contracts over $15,000 
involving maintenance work, the District not enter into or award a Contract 
to a Contractor that is not registered with the DIR and that the District submit 
notice of Contract award through DIR’s PWC-100 system within 30 days of 
the award, but in no event later than the first day in which a Contractor 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

9 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

begins work.  Notwithstanding the provisions of this Policy, for Contracts for 
Services that are Prevailing Wage Contracts, a Procurement process shall 
be utilized, which complies with all aspects of state and local law governing 
Prevailing Wage Contracts, including, but not limited to, the Public Contract 
Code, Labor Code, State Regulations, Ordinances, Resolutions and 
Policies of the Board of Directors as may be adopted from time-to-time. 

 
Section 10: Bidding, Purchasing and Contracting for Public Works Projects 
 

A. $15,000 or Less 
 
A Formal Bid Process is not required for Public Works Projects valued at 
$15,000 or less.  For procurementProcurement of Public Works Projects 
valued at $15,000 or less, the processes identified for Goods and/or 
Services above may be used based on the corresponding monetary value.  
 

B. More than $15,000 
 
1. For Procurement of Public Works Projects over $15,000 and subject 

to Public Contract Code section 20800 et seq., thea Formal Bid 
Process shall complybe utilized, which complies with all aspects of 
federal, state and local law governing formal competitive bidding, 
including, but not limited to, the Public Contract Code, Government 
Code, Labor Code, State Regulations, Federal Regulations, grant 
requirements, Ordinances, Resolutions and Policies of the Board of 
Directors as may be adopted from time-to-time. 
 

2. The notice inviting formal bids shall comply with the requirements set 
forth in Public Contract Code section 20804.  At a minimum, the 
notice inviting formal bids shall:  

 
(a) Describe the project in general terms and state the project to 

be done;  
 

(b) State how to obtain more detailed information about the 
project.  The specifications shall not call for a designated 
material, product, thing, or service by specific brand or trade 
name unless the District complies with the requirements 
under Public Contract Code section 3400 et seq.;  

 
(c) State the deadline, including date, time and place, for the 

submission of sealed bids that is at least ten (10) calendar 
days after publication or posting of the notice;  

 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

10 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

(d) Require bidders to post one of the following forms of bidder'’s 
security: (a) cash, (b ) a cashier'’s check made payable to the 
District, (c) a certified check made payable to the District, or 
(d) a bidder'’s bond executed by an admitted surety insurer, 
made payable to the District; 

 
(e) State that a payment bond is required for a Contract for a 

Public Works Project involving an expenditure in excess of 
twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) as required pursuant 
to Civil Code section 9550.  For Contracts at or below 
$25,000, a payment bond may be required; 

 
(f) Include a provision stating that the Contractor will be 

permitted to substitute securities for any monies withheld by 
the District to ensure performance of the Contract pursuant to 
Public Contract Code section 22300; 

 
(g) Specify the classification of the contractor’s license the 

Contractor must possess at the time a Contract is awarded as 
required pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3300;  

 
(h) Include all statements required to be included in calls for bids 

and bid invitations for Prevailing Wage Contracts pursuant to 
State law, including, without limitation, Labor Code sections 
1771.1(b) and 1771.4(a) and Public Contract Code section 
6109; 

 
(i) (f) Advise vendors that the District may reject any and/or all 

bids received and re-advertise, and that the District may waive 
any minor irregularities in each bid received;  

 
(j) (g) Set forth a procedure that shall be followed in the event of 

a tie between the lowest Responsive and Responsible 
bidders;   

 
(k) (h) Include any other information required by federal, state or 

local law, as applicable, or whatever provisions, consistent 
with this Policy, that the General Manager or Finance/HR 
Director determines are necessary, desirable, and/or 
advantageous to the District.  

 
3. Each notice inviting bids shall be published in a newspaper of 

general circulation or posted in at least three public places in the 
District at least ten (10) days before the date for the opening of bids 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

11 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

consistent with the requirements set forth in Public Contract Code 
section 20804. 
 

4. Bid Opening: 
   

(a) Sealed bids shall be submitted to the District officeplace 
designated in the notice inviting bids, time stamped when 
received, and shall clearly identify the bidder and the name of 
the project on the envelope.   
 

(b) Bidders may modify or withdraw their bids prior to the deadline 
for submitting bids, without penalty.  However, any 
modifications submitted after the bid opening will not be 
accepted.  Such modification will be returned to the bidder, 
unopened. 
 

(c) Bids shall be opened in public at the time and place stated in 
the public notice. 
 

(d) The Board PresidentGeneral Manager or his/her designee 
shall open the bids and shall record all bids received. 

 
(e) Bids shall be submitted so that they will be received at the 

place designated in the notice inviting bids not later than the 
exact time specified in the notice.  Any bid received after the 
exact time specified in the notice shall be returned to the 
bidder, unopened.  A bid shall be considered to have been 
timely submitted if it is received at any time during the sixty 
second duration of the minute of of the exact time specified in 
the notice (for example, if the notice provides that the bid is to 
be submitted no later than 2:00, the bid will be considered 
timely submitted as long as it is received before 2:01).    

 
(f) When a bidder’s security is required, it will be announced in 

the public notice inviting bids.  The amount shall be 
determined at the time of preparation of the bid.  When a 
bidder’s security is required, a bid shall not be considered 
unless one of the aforementioned forms of security 
accompanies the bid.  Unsuccessful bidders shall be entitled 
to return of the bid security within a reasonable period of time, 
but no later than 60 days from the time award is made.   

 
 The successful bidder must execute the Contract and 
file acceptable documents within thirty (30) calendar days 
from the date of award unless extended in writing by the Board 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

12 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

of Directors or their designeeGeneral Manager.  Failure to 
execute the Contract shall be just cause for annulment of the 
award and forfeiture of the bidder’s security, not as a penalty, 
but as liquidated damages.   The Board of Directors may, 
upon refusal or failure of the successful bidder to execute the 
Contract, award the Contract to the next lowest Responsive 
and Responsible Bidder. 

 
5. Bid Protests: 

 
(a) Any bidder claiming that another bidder is not a Responsive 

and Responsible Bidder shall submit a formal written protest 
conforming to the requirements of this section to the General 
Manager or his/her designee in person, by U.S. mail, or to the 
address and in the manner otherwise specified in the bid 
solicitation.  Any protest not conforming to the requirements 
of this section may be rejected as invalid. 
 

(b) Unless a longer period is specified in the request for bids, to 
be considered a valid protest, a bid protest must be received 
by the General Manager or designee no later than 5:00 p.m. 
on the fifth business day after the date of the bid opening.  If 
the fifth business day falls on a weekend or a District holiday, 
the deadline to submit a protest shall be extended to 5:00 p.m. 
on the next business day.   

 
(c) A bidder submitting the protest shall concurrently transmit a 

copy of the protest to the bidder deemed the apparent lowest 
bidder and to any other bidder that is the subject of the protest. 

 
(d) Bid protests must include the name, address and telephone 

number of the protestor and/or the person representing the 
protesting party.  The written protest must set forth, in detail, 
all grounds for the protest, including, without limitation, all 
facts, supporting documentation, legal authorities, and 
arguments in support of the grounds for the protest.  All factual 
contentions must be supported by evidence.  Any matters not 
set forth in the formal written protest will be deemed waived. 

 
(e)   The General Manager shall review a timely bid protest and 

transmit a written determination on the protest stating the 
reasons for the determination to the protesting bidder and all 
other affected bidders.  Such determination may be 
transmitted by U.S. mail or email and shall be deemed 
transmitted on the date it is deposited in the U.S. mail or sent 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

13 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

via email.  The General Manager may base his/her 
determination on the written protest alone or may informally 
gather evidence from the person(s) filing the protest or any 
other person having relevant information.     

 
 

(f) If a bidder disagrees with the determination on the protest 
made by the General Manager, the bidder may appeal the 
General Manager’s determination to the Board of Directors.  
Any such appeal shall be in writing, and shall be filed with the 
General Manager within five business days of transmittal of 
the General Manager’s determination.  The Board of Directors 
shall not consider award of the Contract until the time for 
appeal has expired. 

 
 

(g) The procedures and time limits set forth in this section are 
mandatory and are a bidder’s sole and exclusive 
administrative remedy in the event of a bid protest.  A bidder’s 
failure to comply with these procedures shall constitute a 
waiver of any right to further pursue a bid protest and/or legal 
challenge to the District’s award of the Contract. 

 
6. 5. Evaluation of Bids: 

 
The General Manager shall independently evaluate and determine 
whether each bidder is a Responsive and Responsible Bidder and 
make a recommendation to the Board of Directors regarding award 
of the Contract. The Board of Directors shall award the Contract to 
the lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder.  In determining 
whether a Bidder is Responsible, staffthe District will take into 
consideration: 

 
(a) Ability, capacity, and skill; 
(b) Ability to meet the time requirements; 
(c) Character, integrity, and reputation; 
(d) Previous Contractor experience; 
(e) Financial resources available for contract performance; and 
(f) Ability to provide future maintenance and service (warranties), 

if necessary; and 
(g) Any other criteria identified in request for bids, instructions to 

bidders or specifications relevant to the trustworthiness, 
quality, fitness, or capacity of a bidder to perform the Contract. 

 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

14 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

If the General Manager determines that any bidder is not a 
Responsive Bidder and/or a Responsible Bidder, the General 
Manager shall notify the bidder in writing of the basis of this 
determination and any related information or evidence received from 
others or adduced as a result of an independent investigation, afford 
the bidder an opportunity to rebut such determination and/or adverse 
evidence, and permit the bidder to present evidence that it is a 
Responsive and Responsible Bidder prior to consideration of award 
of the Contract by the Board of Directors.    
 

7. 6. Rejection of Bids: 
 

The District reserves the right to reject any and/or all bids, to accept 
or reject any one or more items of a bid, or to waive any irregularities 
or informalities in the bids or the bidding process if it is deemed in 
the best interest of the District. 
 
If, after the first invitation of bids, all bids are rejected, the District 
may elect to re-advertise for bids, re-evaluate the project, or cancel 
the project to consider it at a later date. 
 

8. 7. Tie Bids: 
 
If tie low responsive and responsible bids are received, quality and 
service being equal, the District may, at its discretion: 
 
i. Reject any and/or all bids presented and re-advertise;  
ii. Accept either one or accept the lowest bid made by  
 negotiation with the tie bidders; or 
iii. Award the bid to any one of the low tie bidders by lot occurring 

during a public meeting. 
 

9. 8. No Bids: 
 
If the District does not receive any bids for a particular project, the 
Board of Directors may have the project done without completing a 
further Formal Bid Process, and the Board of Directors may direct 
the General Manager to award a construction Contract through a 
Negotiated Procurement. 
 

109. Awarding: 
 
Unless the District rejects all bids, the Board of Directors shall award 
the Contract to the lowest Responsible and Responsive Bidder. The 
Board of Directors shall award the Contract during a public meeting.  



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

15 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

For Contracts over $25,000, the Board of Directors shall require that 
the Contractor awarded the Contract file, before commencement of 
work, a payment (performance) bond that is no less than 100 percent 
of the total amount due under the Contract. For Contracts at or below 
$25,000, a payment (performance) bond may be required. 
 

1110. Change Orders: 
 
The General Manager and/or Finance Director are authorized to 
issueapprove Change Orders for changes or additions to the original 
scope of services up to and including $5,000,the cumulative amount 
of ten percent of the awarded contract amount or $15,000, whichever 
is greater, or as otherwise expressly authorized by the Board of 
Directors.  For such change ordersChange Orders, the General 
Manager shall inform the Board of Directors of the change 
orderChange Order at the next regular Board meeting after it is 
authorized.   Except as set forth herein, changes to formal Contracts 
awarded by the Board of Directors require Board of Directors’ 
approval.  
 

1211.  Specified Emergencies: 
 
In the event of an emergency as defined in Public Contract Code 
section 1102 as "a sudden, unexpected occurrence that poses a 
clear and imminent danger, requiring immediate action to prevent or 
mitigate the loss or impairment of life, health, property, or essential 
public services" or as described in Public Contract Code section 
20806 as "work to prepare for national or local defense", the District 
may enter into a Contract for the construction of a Public Works 
Project through Negotiated Procurement if the Board of Directors 
adopts findings by a four-fifths vote of its members declaring that the 
public interest and necessity demand the immediate expenditure of 
District funds to safeguard life, health, or property.  In the event the 
Board of Directors is unavailable in an emergency, as defined in this 
paragraph, the General Manager is authorized to enter into a 
Contract for the repair or replacement of a public facility, take any 
directly related and immediate action required by that emergency, 
and procure the necessary equipment, services, and supplies for 
those purposes, without following the District’s procurement 
procedures set forth herein, including competitive bidding 
procedures and/or obtaining contracting approval as otherwise 
normally required.  The District shall comply with the requirements 
set forth in Public Contract Code section 20806 and Public Contract 
Code sections 22050 et seq., for specified emergencies. 

 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

16 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

C. Design-Build 
 
Where authorized by the Public Contract Code or other statute, the District 
may utilize a design-build selection process for the award of Public Works 
Contracts. 
 

D. Prevailing Wage Contracts for Public Works Projects 
 

Contracts over $1,000 for Public Works Projects are Prevailing Wage 
Contracts subject to the requirements of Labor Code section 1720 et seq. 
and requiring the payment of prevailing wages., including, without limitation, 
requirements that Contractors be registered with the Department of 
Industrial Relations (“DIR”) and maintain certified payroll records, and that 
for Prevailing Wage Contracts over $25,000 involving construction, 
alteration, demolition, installation, or repair work, and Prevailing Wage 
Contracts over $15,000 involving maintenance work, the District not enter 
into or award a Contract to a Contractor that is not registered with the DIR 
and that the District submit notice of Contract award through DIR’s PWC-
100 system within 30 days of the award, but in no event later than the first 
day in which a Contractor begins work.  

 
Section 11: Other Exceptions from Bidding Requirements 
 

A. It is recognized that no set of rules or procedures can take every 
circumstance into account and it is also recognized that occasionally 
circumstances may arise where it is in the District’s best interest to deviate 
from them.  In such cases the department supervisors shall bring the need 
to the General Manager’s and/or Finance/HR Director’s attention.  The 
General Manager and/or the Finance/HR Director, on a case by case basis, 
may waive any of the requirements of this Policy for purchases of Goods 
and/or Services of $20,00040,000 or less.  The District Board of Directors, 
on a case by case basis, may waive any of the requirements of this Policy 
for (1) purchases of Goods and/or Services greater than $20,00040,000 or 
(2) the award of Contracts for Public Works Projects greater than $15,000, 
if permitted by State law. 
 

B. Where specified in this Policy, Goods and Services may be purchased by, 
and the award of Contracts for Public Works Projects may be made by, 
Negotiated Procurement.  Negotiated Procurements are permitted:  (1) 
where competitive bidding would be impossible, impractical, or 
incongruous, or would not result in any advantage to the District in its efforts 
to contract for the greatest public benefit; (2) in an emergency; (3) when the 
Goods and/or Services can be obtained from only one source or the price 
is controlled by law; (4) when the amount involved is $5,000,10,000 or less; 
or (5) where compelling economic or administrative considerations warrant 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

17 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

employment of alternate purchasing procedures.  Such considerations may 
include, but are not limited to, circumstances in which services have been 
previously rendered by a Contractor who has thereby gained and exhibited 
unique and/or superior experience and/or expertise in relation to the 
District’s operational requirements.  Such procurement shall be negotiated 
by the General Manager or Finance/HR Director as authorized by the Board 
of Directors. 

 
 

C. No provision in this Policy shall be interpreted or construed to prohibit or 
prevent the District from renewing or extending existing Contracts for Goods 
and/or Services, provided that normal procurement procedures were used 
in the original selection.  Renewal or extension of such Contracts obligating 
the District to any payment exceeding $20,00040,000 per year shall be 
subject to approval by the Board of Directors. 

 
D. When another public agency or government purchasing cooperative 

organization has awarded a Contract for Goods and/or Services pursuant 
to a process substantially similar to the processes described in this Policy, 
the District may acquire such Goods and/or Services on the same or 
substantially similar terms without conducting its own separate 
Procurement process.  Cooperative and “piggyback” purchasing provides a 
means for the District to join with other public agencies, businesses, or 
government purchasing cooperative organizations for the purpose of 
collectively preparing specifications, and requesting and receiving bids, 
quotations or proposals, or utilizing the quotations and bids obtained by 
other governmental agencies.  Examples of cooperative or piggyback 
purchasing include, but are not limited to, purchases made using another 
agency’s contract, joint buying within a regional area, participation in the 
State of California Multiple Awards Schedules (CMAS) program and 
statewide commodity contracts and the utilization of contracts negotiated by 
municipal leagues or organizations such as the California Special Districts 
Association (CSDA), and California Association of Sanitation Agencies 
(CASA).  Any Contract or arrangement for such cooperative purchases shall 
be subject to approval by the Board of Directors if such approval would 
otherwise be required. The General Manager shall inform the Board of 
Directors any cooperative or piggyback purchases made within the 
purchasing authority of the General Manager or Finance/HR Director at the 
next regular Board meeting after the purchase is made. 

 
Section 12: Sole Source 
 
Sole Source procurement of Goods and/or Services shall not be used unless there is 
substantial evidence that only one source exists to fulfill the District’s requirements.  The 
Services necessary to monitor, maintain, and service the District’s sewer SCADA system, 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

18 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

which are currently reasonably available from a single vendor, is one example of Sole 
Source Procurement is appropriate.  Except as otherwise authorized in emergency 
situations, all Sole Source purchases over $5,00040,000 require approval by the Board 
of Directors.    
 
Sole Source purchases shall be well documented and provide verification that a good 
faith search for competition has been made or that the requested item or service provider 
is deemed to be the only one practicably available.  
 
Sole Source restrictions may be waived in the event of an emergency in order to protect 
the health and safety of the community. 
 
Section 13: Solid Waste and Recycling Carts and Bins 
 
Solid waste and recycling carts and bins are typically ordered in bulk to meet the needs 
of the District and to take advantage of cost savings whenever feasible.  A single order 
for carts or bins may exceed the dollar amount triggering use of an Informal Bid Process 
as set forth in Section 10.  TheNotwithstanding Section 10, herein, the General Manager 
or Finance/HR Director mayis authorized make such purchases so long as such 
purchases are within the District’s approved budget, or unless otherwise directed by the 
Board of Directors.  For purchases under this Section that would otherwise require Board 
of Directors’ approval due to contract amount, or would have otherwise required a Formal 
Bid Process or Informal Bid Process, the General Manager shall inform the Board of 
Directors of the Procurement at the next regular Board meeting after the purchase is 
authorized.   
 
Section 14: Local Preference 
 
For the purchase of Goods and/or Services, excluding Contracts for Public Works 
Projects, when two or more proposals or request for quotations are the same, in unit, 
quality, service and total cost, preference may be given to the Local Vendor.   
 
Preference may be given to a Local Vendor if the quote for Services or Goods, including 
all applicable taxes and shipping, is no more than 5% higher than the lowest bid (quote) 
received. 
 
Section 15:  Surplus Property 
 
The Board of Directors shall approve the disposition of all Surplus Property.  Surplus 
Property may be offered for sale using any of the processes identified below, transferred 
to another Department, traded-in for new equipment or material, donated, recycled or 
disposed of through the solid waste collection system.  All Surplus Property that is for 
sale shall be sold “as is” and “where is,” with no warranty, guarantee, or representation 
of any kind, expressed or implied, as to the condition, utility or usability of the property 
offered for sale or as otherwise directed by the Board of Directors.  Appropriate methods 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

19 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

of sale are as follows: public auction; sealed bids; negotiated sale; sell as salvage; or as 
otherwise directed by the Board of Directors. 
 
Section 16: Execution of Contracts 
 
After award, all Contracts for Goods and/or Services at or under $20,000,40,000, and all 
Contracts for Public Works Projects at or under $15,000, shall be executed on behalf of 
the District by the General Manager or Finance/HR Director unless otherwise directed 
by the Board of Directors.  Contracts for Goods and/or Services over $20,000,40,000, 
and Contracts for Public Works Projects over $15,000, shall be executed on behalf of 
the District by the President of the Board of Directors, or his or her designee, after 
Board approval, unless the Board of Directors authorizes the General Manager to 
execute the Contract.  Prior to execution of any Contract, the Contractor shall 
demonstrate that it is authorized to do business in California, the County of Orange, and 
the City of Westminster.  Contractors that are organized as a corporation, limited liability 
company, or other entity under the laws of another state must be properly registered 
with the California Secretary of State pursuant to applicable law. 
 
Section 17: Approval by General Counsel 
 
District Counsel shall approve, in writing, the District’s standard Contract (agreement) 
form.  In the event that the District’s standard Contract form is not applicable, the Board 
of Directors, or General Manager or Finance/HR Director, at their discretion, may direct 
District Counsel to review any other Contract for approval as to form. 
 
Section 18: Noncompliance 
 
Any Contract entered into which fails in any respect to comply with the provisions of this 
Policy may be voided by the Board of Directors.  
Section 19:  Precedence over Prior Policies, Procedures, or Actions 
 
Upon approval by the Board of Directors, this Policy shall be deemed to take precedence 
over any other prior Board of Director policies, procedures, or actions that are in conflict 
with or inconsistent with the provisions of this Policy.  If Staff identifies any conflict or 
inconsistency between this Policy and any other approved District policy or procedure, 
Staff shall inform the Board of Directors of such conflict or inconsistency in writing. 
 
Section 20: Definitions 
 
For the purposes of this section, the words and terms set forth below shall be construed 
in accordance with the following definitions: 
 

A. “Authorized Agent” when used with respect to the District, shall mean the 
General Manager, the Finance/Human Resources Director (Finance/HR 
Director) or their respective designee. 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

20 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

 
A. B. "Best Value" shall mean the overall combination of quality, price, and 

other elements of a proposal/bid (or combination of several proposals or 
bids) that, when considered together, provide the greatest overall benefit in 
response to the requirements described in the solicitation documents. 
 

B. C. "Budgeted" shall mean the amount of appropriations within a fund 
adopted for expenditure by the Board of Directors. 

 
C. D. "Change Order" shall mean a properly executed written agreement 

entered into between the District and the Contractor, or a directive 
unilaterally issued by the District, covering modifications to the original 
Contract, which may result in adjustments to the scope of work, cost and/or 
period of performance. 
 

D. E. “Contract” shall mean any type of arrangement for the purchase of Goods 
and/or Services, including construction services for Public Works Projects.  
Contracts may be referred to in various ways, including "contract", 
"agreement", or "purchase order." 

 
E. F. “Contractor” shall mean any person or entity that has a Contract with the 

District. 
 

F. G. "Formal Bid Process" shall mean a competitive selection process  
requiring a public notice inviting bids, availability of specifications, bid 
opening, determination of lowest responsive and responsible bidder, and 
awarding or rejection of the bid(s).  

 
G. “General Manager” means the general manager of the District or person 

designated by the general manager to exercise some or all of the authority 
or to perform all or some of the duties prescribed in this Policy. 

 
H. "General Services"  shall mean the furnishing of labor, time or effort by a 

Contractor, including, but not limited to:  (a) routine, recurring, and usual 
work for the preservation or protection of a publicly-owned, or publicly-
operated facility for intended purposes; (b) minor repainting; (c) resurfacing 
of streets and highways; (d) landscape maintenance, including mowing, 
watering, trimming, pruning, planting, replacement of plants, and servicing 
of irrigation and sprinkler systems; and (e) work performed to keep, operate 
and maintain publicly-owned wastewater or solid waste disposal systems.  
 

I. "Goods" shall mean fixed, movable, disposable, and/or reusable products, 
commodities, or items used by the District, including but not limited to, office 
supplies, program supplies, subscriptions, equipment, vehicles, fuel and 
vehicle supplies, tools, computers, computer hardware and software, 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

21 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

landscape and irrigation supplies, power tools, janitorial supplies, office 
furniture, and fixtures, which shall be furnished to or used by any 
department.   

 
J. "Informal Bid Process" shall mean a bidding andcompetitive selection 

process used, when applicable, to ensure the most competitive price or Best 
Value is received for Goods and/or Services, while avoiding the time and 
expense involved in formal bidding.  The process requires a notice inviting 
informal bids, availability of project details, bid opening, determination of 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder, and awarding or rejection of the 
bid(s).the solicitation of written informal bids and/or proposals from potential 
vendors and the selection of a vendor based either on the lowest cost 
commensurate with the quality and scope needed, or Best Value, and 
subject to any limitations imposed by state law.   

 
K. “Local Vendor” shall mean a firm or individual who regularly maintains a 

place of business and transacts business in, or maintains an inventory of 
merchandise for sale in, or is licensed within the District’s boundaries.  
 

L. "Negotiated Procurement" shall mean a selection process whereby the 
General Manager identifies one or more prospective Contractors of his or 
her choice, negotiates with one or more of them, and awards the Contract 
to one of them based on the best interest of the District. 
 

M. "Originating Department" shall mean any District department requiring 
Goods, Services, and/or the award of Contracts for Public Works Projects. 

 
N. “Prevailing Wage Contract” shall mean any Contract requiring the payment 

of prevailing wages and subject to requirements of Chapter 1 of Part 7 of 
Division 2 of the California Labor Code (Section 1720 et seq.).  Prevailing 
Wage Contracts may include, without limitation, Contracts for either Public 
Works Projects or Services that involve construction, alteration, demolition, 
installation, maintenance, or repair work, or certain other work done for the 
District; street, sewer, or other improvement work; the laying of carpet; or 
the hauling of refuse from a public works site to an outside disposal facility.  
Pursuant to Senate Bill 854, the District is required to notify the Department 
of Industrial Relations within five (5) days of letting any public works contract 
over $1,000.; or the on hauling of materials used for paving, grading, and 
fill onto a public works site, if the individual driver’s work is integrated into 
the flow process of construction.   

 
O. "Procurement" shall mean buying, purchasing, renting, leasing, or 

otherwise acquiring any Goods, Services, construction, construction 
services, or professional services.   
 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

22 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

P. "Professional Services" shall mean services provided by any specially 
trained, educated, experienced or licensed person, company, corporation, 
or firm, and which involve the exercise of discretion and independent 
judgment together with an advanced or specialized knowledge, expertise, 
training, or unique skills gained by formal studies or experience.   

 
Q. “Professional Services Agreements (PSA)” shall mean Contracts 

negotiated for Professional Services, which are based on demonstrated 
competence, professional qualifications for the services required, 
availability, and fair and reasonable cost. 

 
R. "Public Works Project" shall mean any construction, reconstruction, 

alteration, enlargement, renewal, or replacement of sewer or other facilities 
that the District is authorized to do, including, but not limited to, the 
furnishing of supplies or materials for any such work as defined pursuant to 
Public Contract Code section 20801. 

 
S. "Purchase Order" shall mean a commercial document issued by a buyer 

to a seller, indicating types, quantities, and agreed prices for products 
or services the seller will provide to the buyer. 

 
T. "Qualified Bidders List" shall mean one list for ongoing service requirements 

for the same or very similar services, including general services, 
professional services, and qualified construction contractors, categorized 
by the type of product sold or work performed for use in soliciting bids.   

U. “RFQ” or “RFP” shall mean Request for Quotes or Request for Proposals. 
 

 
U. V. "Responsible Bidder" shall mean a bidder who has demonstrated the 

attribute of trustworthiness, as well as quality, fitness, capacity, and 
experience to satisfactorily perform the work or services proposed. 

 
V. W. "Responsive Bidder" shall mean a bidder who has submitted a bid which 

conforms in all material respects to the terms and conditions, specifications 
and other requirements requested. 

 
W. X. "Services" shall mean the furnishing of labor, time or effort by a 

Contractor.  Services include both General Services and Professional 
Services, unless otherwise specified. 

 
X. Y. "Sole Source" shall mean an award for Goods and/or Services that are 

(i) of a unique nature based on their quality, durability, availability, fitness or 
qualifications for a particular use; or (ii) only available from one source.   

 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

23 
1248146.1 
1762214.1 

Y. Z. "Surplus Property" means property, other than real property, no longer 
needed by District departments for their operations, obsolete property, 
property in poor or non-working condition, or property that is a by-product 
(i.e., scrap metal, used tires, oil, etc.). 

 
 



 

1762214.1 

Document comparison by Workshare 9.5 on Thursday, March 30, 2023 12:34:43 
PM 
Input: 

Document 1 ID 
interwovenSite://DMS-WSS-
LAW.ONACP.COM/IMDB1/1248146/1  

Description 
#1248146v1<IMDB1> - MCSD Purchasing Policy - June 
2017 (Clean)  

Document 2 ID 
interwovenSite://DMS-WSS-
LAW.ONACP.COM/IMDB1/1762210/1  

Description 
#1762210v1<IMDB1> - MCSD Purchasing Policy - March 
2023 (Clean)  

Rendering set Standard 
 
Legend: 

Insertion  

Deletion  

Moved from  

Moved to  

Style change  

Format change  

Moved deletion  

Inserted cell   

Deleted cell   

Moved cell  

Split/Merged cell  

Padding cell  
 
Statistics: 

 Count 

Insertions 159 

Deletions 112 

Moved from 0 

Moved to 0 

Style change 0 

Format changed 0 



 

1762214.1 

Total changes 271 

 



 

1761894.1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-09 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT OF 
ORANGE COUNTY APPROVING AMENDED 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES. 
 
 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDWAY CITY SANITARY 

DISTRICT FINDS AND DETERMINES AS FOLLOWS: 

A. The Midway City Sanitary District Board of Directors previously adopted 

amended Purchasing Policy and Procedures in 2014 and revised said Purchasing Policy 

and Procedures in 2015, 2016, and 2017.   

B.  The Board of Directors has determined that the existing Purchasing Policy 

and Procedures should be revised and updated. 

C. Rents, the cost of land, wages and benefits, taxes, insurance rates and the 

administrative costs of doing business are substantially higher for businesses located 

within the District’s jurisdictional boundaries than for many businesses located 

elsewhere. 

D. It is well-documented that other states and jurisdictions are actively 

soliciting local businesses to relocate elsewhere based on the higher cost of doing 

business locally, the result of which is an erosion of the local economic base.   Erosion of 

the local economic base will reduce District options available for obtaining goods and 

services which is likely to increase the District’s costs in obtaining goods and services. 

E. It is in the interests of the District’s ratepayers that businesses currently 

located within the District’s jurisdictional boundaries remain locally based instead of 

relocating to outlying areas or other states. 

F. Based upon the foregoing, the District’s local vendor preference is 

supportive of local economic development and maintained local economic viability. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Midway City Sanitary 

District resolves as follows:  



 

1761894.1 

Section 1:  The Purchasing Policy and Procedures attached hereto as Exhibit A are 

hereby approved. 

2. Section 2:  The District’s Purchasing Policy and Procedures adopted in 

2014 and amended in 2015, 2016, and 2017 are hereby rescinded. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of 

Midway City Sanitary District of Orange County, California, held this 4th day of April, 

2023. 

 
___________________________ 
Tyler Diep, President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________  
Andrew Nguyen, Secretary 
 



 

1761894.1 

Exhibit A 
 

MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT  
PURCHASING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 



 

1761894.1 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 
 

  
 I, Andrew Nguyen, Secretary of the MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT of 
Orange County, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2023-09 
was duly adopted at a meeting of the Governing Board of said District held on the 4th day 
of April, 2023 by the following vote of the members of the Board: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:    
ABSENT:     
  
and I further certify that Tyler Diep, as President, and Andrew Nguyen, as Secretary, signed 
and approved said Resolution No. 2023-09 on the 21st day of March, 2023. 
 
   
___________________________ 
Andrew Nguyen, Secretary 
 
 
(District Seal) 
 

 
 STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
       ) ss. 
 COUNTY OF ORANGE  ) 
 

 I, Andrew Nguyen, Secretary of the Midway City Sanitary District of Orange 
County, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of 
Resolution No. 2023-09 passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of said District at a 
meeting thereof held on the 4th day of April, 2023. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official 
Seal of said District this 4th day of April, 2023. 
 
       
   _______________________ 
   Andrew Nguyen, Secretary 
 
 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

1 
1762210.1 

Section 1:  Introduction 
 
This policy shall be known as the Midway City Sanitary District’s (District) Purchasing 
Policy and Procedures (Policy).  Its purpose is to: establish policies and procedures for 
the purchase of Goods, Services, and the award of Contracts for Public Works Projects 
at the lowest possible cost commensurate with the quality needed; exercise positive 
financial control over purchases; ensure the District complies with state laws governing 
the award of Contracts for Goods, Services and Public Works Projects; and clearly define 
authority for District purchases. 
 
Section 2: Administrative Rules and Procedures 
 
The General Manager may issue and enforce such administrative rules and procedures 
as required and necessary to carry out the intent and purposes of this Policy.   
 
Section 3: Authorization by the Board of Directors 
 
The purchase of any Goods and/or Services having an estimated value greater than 
$40,000, and/or award of Contracts for Public Works Projects having an estimated value 
greater than $15,000, shall be subject to approval by the Board of Directors.  
Procurements shall not be artificially split or divided into different individual Contracts so 
as to keep each Contract amount below monetary thresholds set forth in this Policy.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the General Manager may approve Procurements valued 
greater than the amounts specified above in emergency situations pursuant to Section 9, 
Paragraph E, and Section 10, Paragraph B.11., herein. 
 
Section 4: Specific Authorization for General Manager  
  to Purchase and Enter into Contracts 
 

A. The General Manager is authorized to approve Procurements of Goods 
and/or Services having an estimated value of $40,000or less, and to award 
Contracts for Public Works Projects having an estimated value of $15,000 
or less, without prior authorization from the Board of Directors.  The General 
Manager shall require that such Procurements be made in conformance 
with the policies established herein.  The Board of Directors may require 
that the General Manager provide periodic reports regarding Procurements 
made under such authorization to the Board of Directors at a regular 
meeting. 
 

B. The General Manager is authorized to approve Change Orders or 
amendments to Contracts for Goods and/or Services for changes or 
additions to the original scope of Goods and/or Services up to the 
cumulative amount of ten percent of the awarded Contract amount or 
$15,000, whichever is greater, or as otherwise expressly authorized by the 
Board of Directors.  For Change Orders or amendments to Contracts 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

2 
1762210.1 

approved by the Board of Directors, the General Manager shall inform the 
Board of Directors of the Change Order or amendment at the next regular 
Board meeting after it is authorized.   Except as set forth herein, changes 
to Contracts approved or awarded by the Board of Directors require Board 
of Directors’ approval. 

 
C. The General Manager is authorized to execute agreements on behalf of the 

District, in a form approved District Counsel, providing for indemnification 
by the District of the other party to the agreement (a) where the value of the 
agreement, other than indemnification, does not exceed $40,000 and Board 
of Directors’ approval of the agreement is not otherwise required, or (b) for 
the use of public or private property by the District, provided, however, that 
any such indemnity provision shall be specifically limited to claims, losses, 
damages, or injuries arising from the District’s use of such property. 

 
D. The General Manager shall have the authority to: 

 
1. Determine the purchasing method(s) to be used, which shall be 

consistent with this Policy. 
 

2. Procure Goods, Services and/or award Contracts for Public Works 
Projects required by the District in accordance with the purchasing 
policies set forth in this Policy and/or as directed by the Board of 
Directors. 
 

3. Negotiate and recommend the execution of Contracts for the 
procurement of Goods, Services and/or Public Works Projects. 
 

4. Act to procure the needed quality in Goods and/or Services, along 
with the award of Contracts for Public Works Projects, at the least 
overall expense to the District. 
 

5. Delegate appropriate authority to District staff. 
 

6. Endeavor to obtain as full and open competition as reasonable for 
Procurements. 
 

7. Prepare, update, and implement rules and procedures consistent 
with this Policy governing the purchase of Goods and Services, and 
the award of Contracts for Public Works Projects for the District. 

 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

3 
1762210.1 

Section 5:  Decentralized Purchasing 
 
The District’s purchasing system is decentralized in order to maintain a continuous supply 
of Goods and/or Services necessary to support the District’s operations and meet the 
District’s obligations to the public.  Each Originating Department is responsible for 
compliance with the District’s policies, procedures and any and all applicable laws. 
 
Section 6: Authorization for Payment(s) 
 
Authority to approve payments for Goods, Services, and Public Works Contracts will lie 
with the District General Manager, subject to review by the Board Treasurer and approval 
and/or ratification by the Board of Directors at a Board meeting.  
 
Section 7: Encumbrance of Funds 
 
Except in cases of emergency, no Contract or Procurement shall be made for Goods, 
Services, or Public Works Projects unless an unencumbered appropriation in the current 
fiscal year budget can be identified, or unless authorized by the Board of Directors.  
 
Section 8: Ethics 
 

A. District personnel shall not accept gifts, rebates, kickbacks, personal 
services, or in any way incur personal gain from any Contractor, actual or 
potential, doing business with the District.   

 
B. No District employee or Board Member shall have a direct or indirect 

individual interest in any Contract or purchase of goods or services entered 
into by the District, or shall derive any personal benefit from the District’s 
purchase of Goods and/or Services.  Without limiting the foregoing, no 
District employee or Board Member shall make any Contract, participate in 
the making of any Contract, or in any way attempt to use his or her official 
position to influence any decision on any Contract, in violation of 
Government Code sections 87100 et seq. or Government Code section 
1090. 
 

C. No District employee or Board Member shall use the purchasing procedures 
to obtain property or services for personal use or by misrepresenting to 
Contractors that personal purchases are for the District (i.e., for the purpose 
of obtaining price discounts).  Notwithstanding the above, Mechanics in the 
Fleet Maintenance Department may personally purchase their own tools 
from Contractors which may be used in the maintenance of the District’s 
fleet.  These tools are the property of the individual mechanic, and the 
District has no obligation to purchase or replace tools personally bought by 
the employee. 

Section 9: Bidding, Purchasing and Contracting for Goods and/or Services 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

4 
1762210.1 

 
A. $10,000 or less: 

 
No bidding is required for Contracts for Goods and/or Services of $10,000 
or less, including all applicable taxes and shipping.  At the discretion of the 
General Manager, at least two (2) quotes shall be obtained to ensure the 
lowest overall cost to the District.   

 
B. More than $10,000, and up to and including $125,000: 

 
Except as otherwise provided in this Policy, the following Informal Bid 
Process is required for Procurements of Goods and/or General (but not 
Professional) Services, including taxes and shipping, that is estimated to be 
more than $10,000, and up to and including $125,000: 
 
1. Written informal bids or proposals shall be solicited from at least 

three (3) vendors identified by District staff not less than ten (10) days 
before bids/proposals are due.   
 

2. When soliciting informal bids or proposals, District staff shall: (1) 
describe the Goods and/or Services in general terms; (2) advise 
vendors how to obtain additional information about the Goods and/or 
Services; (3) state the date, time, method and place for the 
submission of bids/proposals; (4) for particular Services, advise 
prospective vendors when the award will be based on the Best Value 
evaluation as determined by the Board of Directors or General 
Manager, as applicable; (5) advise vendors that the District may 
reject any and/or all bids or proposals received, and may waive any 
minor irregularities in each bid or proposal received; and (6) include 
any other information required by federal, state or local law, as 
applicable.   

 
C. Over $125,000: 
 

Except as otherwise provided in this Policy, a Formal Bid Process is 
required for procurements of Goods and/or General Services, including 
taxes and shipping, that is estimated to be over $125,000.  The District shall 
solicit formal sealed bids in accordance with the following procedures: 
 
1. Publish a Notice Inviting Bids that contains (a) a description of the 

Goods and/or Services required, (b) a description of the selection 
process, (c) bidder's security requirement, if applicable, (d) 
performance bond requirements, if applicable, and (e) such 
provisions, terms, and conditions, consistent with this Policy, that are 
deemed necessary, desirable, and/or advantageous to the District; 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

5 
1762210.1 

 
2. Open the bids publicly at the time and place designated in the Notice 

Inviting Bids, and record the amount of each bid; 
 

3. Determine whether the bids are responsive to the Notice Inviting 
Bids; and 
 

4. Take one of the following actions: 
 
(a) Award the Contract to the lowest Responsive and 

Responsible Bidder;  
(b) Reject any and all bids presented and/or re-advertise the bid; 

or 
(c) Declare that the Goods and/or Services may be acquired at a 

lower cost by negotiation in the open market and authorize the 
Procurement in that manner. 

 
5. If two or more bids received are for the same total amount or unit 

price, the District may accept the one it chooses or accept the lowest 
bid made by negotiation with the tie bidders at the time of the award. 

 
D. Professional Services 
 
 To ensure the selection of Professional Services are based on 

demonstrated competence and on professional qualifications necessary for 
the satisfactory performance of the services required, the following 
procedures shall be followed for the Procurement of Professional Services: 

 
1. $40,000 or less 

For the Procurement of Professional Services estimated to cost 
$40,000 or less, the General Manager shall informally request at 
least two (2) proposals from vendors providing the type of services 
needed.  The General Manager shall engage the most qualified 
person or firm based upon demonstrated competence and on 
professional qualifications necessary for the satisfactory 
performance of the services required, as determined in the sole 
discretion of the General Manager.  



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

6 
1762210.1 

2. Over $40,000 

(a) For the Procurement of Professional Services estimated to 
cost more than $40,000, a Request for Proposals shall be 
issued for each Professional Service requested.  Multiple 
projects may be bundled into one Request for Proposals such 
that multiple Contract awards may result from one Request for 
Proposals and selection may be based upon specialized 
services. Each Request for Proposals shall require that 
proposals contain, at a minimum, the following information:  

i. The firm’s qualifications for performing the proposed 
work. 

ii. The firm's relevant experience and performance on 
similar projects. 

iii. A fee proposal, based on the method of compensation 
specified in the Request for Proposal, and an estimate 
of total fees. 

iv. The firm’s ability to complete the work within the time 
allotted. 

v. The personnel that will be assigned to the project. 

vi. A statement that the firm's engagement for the project 
would not create a conflict of interest. 

vii. Any other information required to properly evaluate the 
firm’s qualifications and experience with similar 
projects. 

viii. Proposals for construction management services shall 
demonstrate that the designated personnel have 
expertise and experience in construction project design 
review and evaluation, construction mobilization and 
supervision, bid evaluation, project scheduling, cost-
benefit analysis, claims review and negotiation, and 
general management and administration of a 
construction project. 

(b) The District shall publicize each Request for Proposals by one 
or more of the following methods: 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

7 
1762210.1 

i. Advertising in the publications of professional 
societies;  

ii. Mailing, electronic mailing, or faxing the Request for 
Proposals to each vendor who has submitted a 
Statement of Qualifications;  

iii. Mailing, electronic mailing, or faxing the Request for 
Proposals to at least three firms qualified to furnish the 
required services as identified in the Qualified Bidders 
List or as otherwise identified by District staff;  

iv. Posting the Request for Proposals on the District 
website; and/or 

v. Using other publication methods that may be beneficial 
to increasing the number of qualified proposals 
received by the District. 

(c) The General Manager shall evaluate the proposals for the 
Board of Director’s review.  In his or her discretion, the 
General Manager may appoint an evaluation committee to 
evaluate the proposals. 

(d) All proposals shall be evaluated and ranked, from most 
qualified to least qualified, based on each firm's demonstrated 
competence and professional qualifications necessary for the 
satisfactory performance of the services required. 

(e) The General Manager may conduct interviews of firms based 
on the proposal rankings in order to determine final rankings.  

(f) At the Board’s Direction, the General Manager shall negotiate 
a Contract with the firm that the General Manager and/or the 
evaluation committee deems to be most qualified.  If the 
General Manager is unable to negotiate a satisfactory 
Contract with the firm deemed to be most qualified, the 
General Manager shall terminate negotiations with that firm 
and may negotiate with the firm deemed to be second most 
qualified.  If those negotiations fail, the General Manager shall 
negotiate with the third most qualified firm, and so on, until an 
agreement is reached or the General Manager determines 
that it is in the best interest of the District to reject the 
remaining firms.  If the Board of Directors determines that it is 
in the best interest of the District, the Board of Directors may 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

8 
1762210.1 

award more than one Contract to the most qualified firms or 
reject all proposals. 

E. Emergency Purchases for Goods and/or Services 
 

Where the Board of Directors or General Manager determines that an 
emergency exists, any one of them may authorize the purchase of Goods 
and/or Services without following the District’s procurement procedures set 
forth herein, including competitive bidding procedures and/or obtaining 
contracting approval as otherwise normally required.  If the emergency 
purchase is for Professional Services, such purchase shall be based upon 
a vendor's demonstrated competence and qualifications for the types of 
services to be performed at a fair and reasonable price.  For the purposes 
of this exception, emergency procurements are those purchases that are 
required to prevent immediate interruption or cessation of necessary 
services or to safeguard life, property, or the public health and welfare.  

 
For all emergency purchases that would otherwise require Board of 
Directors’ approval due to contract amount, or which would have otherwise 
required a Formal Bid Process, the General Manager shall inform the Board 
of Directors of the Procurement at the next regular Board meeting after the 
purchase is authorized.   

 
F. Prevailing Wage Service Contracts 

 
Contracts over $1,000 for certain Services, including, but not limited to, 
installation, maintenance, repair work, or certain other work done for the 
District, may be Prevailing Wage Contracts subject to the requirements of 
Labor Code section 1720 et seq. and other laws and requiring the payment 
of prevailing wages. including, without limitation, requirements that 
Contractors be registered with the Department of Industrial Relations 
("DIR") and maintain certified payroll records, and that for Prevailing Wage 
Contracts over $25,000 involving construction, alteration, demolition, 
installation, or repair work, and Prevailing Wage Contracts over $15,000 
involving maintenance work, the District not enter into or award a Contract 
to a Contractor that is not registered with the DIR and that the District submit 
notice of Contract award through DIR’s PWC-100 system within 30 days of 
the award, but in no event later than the first day in which a Contractor 
begins work. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Policy, for Contracts for 
Services that are Prevailing Wage Contracts, a Procurement process shall 
be utilized, which complies with all aspects of state and local law governing 
Prevailing Wage Contracts, including, but not limited to, the Public Contract 
Code, Labor Code, State Regulations, Ordinances, Resolutions and 
Policies of the Board of Directors as may be adopted from time-to-time. 

 
Section 10: Bidding, Purchasing and Contracting for Public Works Projects 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

9 
1762210.1 

 
A. $15,000 or Less 

 
A Formal Bid Process is not required for Public Works Projects valued at 
$15,000 or less.  For Procurement of Public Works Projects valued at 
$15,000 or less, the processes identified for Goods and/or Services above 
may be used based on the corresponding monetary value.  
 

B. More than $15,000 
 
1. For Procurement of Public Works Projects over $15,000 and subject 

to Public Contract Code section 20800 et seq., a Formal Bid Process 
shall be utilized, which complies with all aspects of federal, state and 
local law governing formal competitive bidding, including, but not 
limited to, the Public Contract Code, Government Code, Labor Code, 
State Regulations, Federal Regulations, grant requirements, 
Ordinances, Resolutions and Policies of the Board of Directors as 
may be adopted from time-to-time. 
 

2. The notice inviting formal bids shall comply with the requirements set 
forth in Public Contract Code section 20804.  At a minimum, the 
notice inviting formal bids shall:  

 
(a) Describe the project in general terms and state the project to 

be done;  
 

(b) State how to obtain more detailed information about the 
project.  The specifications shall not call for a designated 
material, product, thing, or service by specific brand or trade 
name unless the District complies with the requirements 
under Public Contract Code section 3400 et seq.;  

 
(c) State the deadline, including date, time and place, for the 

submission of sealed bids that is at least ten (10) calendar 
days after publication or posting of the notice;  

 
(d) Require bidders to post one of the following forms of bidder’s 

security: (a) cash, (b) a cashier’s check made payable to the 
District, (c) a certified check made payable to the District, or 
(d) a bidder’s bond executed by an admitted surety insurer, 
made payable to the District; 

 
(e) State that a payment bond is required for a Contract for a 

Public Works Project involving an expenditure in excess of 
twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) as required pursuant 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

10 
1762210.1 

to Civil Code section 9550.  For Contracts at or below 
$25,000, a payment bond may be required; 

 
(f) Include a provision stating that the Contractor will be 

permitted to substitute securities for any monies withheld by 
the District to ensure performance of the Contract pursuant to 
Public Contract Code section 22300; 

 
(g) Specify the classification of the contractor’s license the 

Contractor must possess at the time a Contract is awarded as 
required pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3300;  

 
(h) Include all statements required to be included in calls for bids 

and bid invitations for Prevailing Wage Contracts pursuant to 
State law, including, without limitation, Labor Code sections 
1771.1(b) and 1771.4(a) and Public Contract Code section 
6109; 

 
(i) Advise vendors that the District may reject any and/or all bids 

received and re-advertise, and that the District may waive any 
minor irregularities in each bid received;  

 
(j) Set forth a procedure that shall be followed in the event of a 

tie between the lowest Responsive and Responsible bidders;   
 

(k) Include any other information required by federal, state or 
local law, as applicable, or whatever provisions, consistent 
with this Policy, that the General Manager determines are 
necessary, desirable, and/or advantageous to the District.  

 
3. Each notice inviting bids shall be published in a newspaper of 

general circulation or posted in at least three public places in the 
District at least ten (10) days before the date for the opening of bids 
consistent with the requirements set forth in Public Contract Code 
section 20804. 

 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

11 
1762210.1 

4. Bid Opening: 
   

(a) Sealed bids shall be submitted to the place designated in the 
notice inviting bids, time stamped when received, and shall 
clearly identify the bidder and the name of the project on the 
envelope.   
 

(b) Bidders may modify or withdraw their bids prior to the deadline 
for submitting bids, without penalty.  However, any 
modifications submitted after the bid opening will not be 
accepted.  Such modification will be returned to the bidder, 
unopened. 
 

(c) Bids shall be opened in public at the time and place stated in 
the public notice. 
 

(d) The General Manager or his/her designee shall open the bids 
and shall record all bids received. 

 
(e) Bids shall be submitted so that they will be received at the 

place designated in the notice inviting bids not later than the 
exact time specified in the notice.  Any bid received after the 
exact time specified in the notice shall be returned to the 
bidder, unopened.  A bid shall be considered to have been 
timely submitted if it is received at any time during the sixty 
second duration of the minute of of the exact time specified in 
the notice (for example, if the notice provides that the bid is to 
be submitted no later than 2:00, the bid will be considered 
timely submitted as long as it is received before 2:01).    

 
(f) When a bidder’s security is required, it will be announced in 

the public notice inviting bids.  The amount shall be 
determined at the time of preparation of the bid.  When a 
bidder’s security is required, a bid shall not be considered 
unless one of the aforementioned forms of security 
accompanies the bid.  Unsuccessful bidders shall be entitled 
to return of the bid security within a reasonable period of time, 
but no later than 60 days from the time award is made.   

 
The successful bidder must execute the Contract and file 
acceptable documents within thirty (30) calendar days from 
the date of award unless extended in writing by the General 
Manager.  Failure to execute the Contract shall be just cause 
for annulment of the award and forfeiture of the bidder’s 
security, not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages.   The 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

12 
1762210.1 

Board of Directors may, upon refusal or failure of the 
successful bidder to execute the Contract, award the Contract 
to the next lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder. 

 
5. Bid Protests: 

 
(a) Any bidder claiming that another bidder is not a Responsive 

and Responsible Bidder shall submit a formal written protest 
conforming to the requirements of this section to the General 
Manager or his/her designee in person, by U.S. mail, or to the 
address and in the manner otherwise specified in the bid 
solicitation.  Any protest not conforming to the requirements 
of this section may be rejected as invalid. 
 

(b) Unless a longer period is specified in the request for bids, to 
be considered a valid protest, a bid protest must be received 
by the General Manager or designee no later than 5:00 p.m. 
on the fifth business day after the date of the bid opening.  If 
the fifth business day falls on a weekend or a District holiday, 
the deadline to submit a protest shall be extended to 5:00 p.m. 
on the next business day.   

 
(c) A bidder submitting the protest shall concurrently transmit a 

copy of the protest to the bidder deemed the apparent lowest 
bidder and to any other bidder that is the subject of the protest. 

 
(d) Bid protests must include the name, address and telephone 

number of the protestor and/or the person representing the 
protesting party.  The written protest must set forth, in detail, 
all grounds for the protest, including, without limitation, all 
facts, supporting documentation, legal authorities, and 
arguments in support of the grounds for the protest.  All factual 
contentions must be supported by evidence.  Any matters not 
set forth in the formal written protest will be deemed waived. 

 
(e) The General Manager shall review a timely bid protest and 

transmit a written determination on the protest stating the 
reasons for the determination to the protesting bidder and all 
other affected bidders.  Such determination may be 
transmitted by U.S. mail or email and shall be deemed 
transmitted on the date it is deposited in the U.S. mail or sent 
via email.  The General Manager may base his/her 
determination on the written protest alone or may informally 
gather evidence from the person(s) filing the protest or any 
other person having relevant information.     



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

13 
1762210.1 

 
(f) If a bidder disagrees with the determination on the protest 

made by the General Manager, the bidder may appeal the 
General Manager’s determination to the Board of Directors.  
Any such appeal shall be in writing, and shall be filed with the 
General Manager within five business days of transmittal of 
the General Manager’s determination.  The Board of Directors 
shall not consider award of the Contract until the time for 
appeal has expired. 

 
(g) The procedures and time limits set forth in this section are 

mandatory and are a bidder’s sole and exclusive 
administrative remedy in the event of a bid protest.  A bidder’s 
failure to comply with these procedures shall constitute a 
waiver of any right to further pursue a bid protest and/or legal 
challenge to the District’s award of the Contract. 

 
6. Evaluation of Bids: 

 
The General Manager shall independently evaluate and determine 
whether each bidder is a Responsive and Responsible Bidder and 
make a recommendation to the Board of Directors regarding award 
of the Contract. The Board of Directors shall award the Contract to 
the lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder.  In determining 
whether a Bidder is Responsible, the District will take into 
consideration: 

 
(a) Ability, capacity, and skill; 
(b) Ability to meet the time requirements; 
(c) Character, integrity, and reputation; 
(d) Previous Contractor experience; 
(e) Financial resources available for contract performance;  
(f) Ability to provide future maintenance and service (warranties), 

if necessary; and 
(g) Any other criteria identified in request for bids, instructions to 

bidders or specifications relevant to the trustworthiness, 
quality, fitness, or capacity of a bidder to perform the Contract. 

 
If the General Manager determines that any bidder is not a 
Responsive Bidder and/or a Responsible Bidder, the General 
Manager shall notify the bidder in writing of the basis of this 
determination and any related information or evidence received from 
others or adduced as a result of an independent investigation, afford 
the bidder an opportunity to rebut such determination and/or adverse 
evidence, and permit the bidder to present evidence that it is a 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

14 
1762210.1 

Responsive and Responsible Bidder prior to consideration of award 
of the Contract by the Board of Directors.    
 

7. Rejection of Bids: 
 

The District reserves the right to reject any and/or all bids, to accept 
or reject any one or more items of a bid, or to waive any irregularities 
or informalities in the bids or the bidding process if it is deemed in 
the best interest of the District. 
 
If, after the first invitation of bids, all bids are rejected, the District 
may elect to re-advertise for bids, re-evaluate the project, or cancel 
the project to consider it at a later date. 
 

8. Tie Bids: 
 
If tie low responsive and responsible bids are received, quality and 
service being equal, the District may, at its discretion: 
 
i. Reject any and/or all bids presented and re-advertise;  
ii. Accept either one or accept the lowest bid made by  
 negotiation with the tie bidders; or 
iii. Award the bid to any one of the low tie bidders by lot occurring 

during a public meeting. 
 

9. No Bids: 
 
If the District does not receive any bids for a particular project, the 
Board of Directors may have the project done without completing a 
further Formal Bid Process, and the Board of Directors may direct 
the General Manager to award a construction Contract through a 
Negotiated Procurement. 
 

10. Awarding: 
 
Unless the District rejects all bids, the Board of Directors shall award 
the Contract to the lowest Responsible and Responsive Bidder. The 
Board of Directors shall award the Contract during a public meeting.  
For Contracts over $25,000, the Board of Directors shall require that 
the Contractor awarded the Contract file, before commencement of 
work, a payment (performance) bond that is no less than 100 percent 
of the total amount due under the Contract. For Contracts at or below 
$25,000, a payment (performance) bond may be required. 
 

11. Change Orders: 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

15 
1762210.1 

 
The General Manager and/or Finance Director are authorized to 
approve Change Orders for changes or additions to the original 
scope of services up to the cumulative amount of ten percent of the 
awarded contract amount or $15,000, whichever is greater, or as 
otherwise expressly authorized by the Board of Directors.  For such 
Change Orders, the General Manager shall inform the Board of 
Directors of the Change Order at the next regular Board meeting 
after it is authorized.   Except as set forth herein, changes to formal 
Contracts awarded by the Board of Directors require Board of 
Directors’ approval.  
 

12. Specified Emergencies: 
 
In the event of an emergency as defined in Public Contract Code 
section 1102 as "a sudden, unexpected occurrence that poses a 
clear and imminent danger, requiring immediate action to prevent or 
mitigate the loss or impairment of life, health, property, or essential 
public services" or as described in Public Contract Code section 
20806 as "work to prepare for national or local defense", the District 
may enter into a Contract for the construction of a Public Works 
Project through Negotiated Procurement if the Board of Directors 
adopts findings by a four-fifths vote of its members declaring that the 
public interest and necessity demand the immediate expenditure of 
District funds to safeguard life, health, or property.  In the event the 
Board of Directors is unavailable in an emergency, as defined in this 
paragraph, the General Manager is authorized to enter into a 
Contract for the repair or replacement of a public facility, take any 
directly related and immediate action required by that emergency, 
and procure the necessary equipment, services, and supplies for 
those purposes, without following the District’s procurement 
procedures set forth herein, including competitive bidding 
procedures and/or obtaining contracting approval as otherwise 
normally required.  The District shall comply with the requirements 
set forth in Public Contract Code section 20806 and Public Contract 
Code sections 22050 et seq., for specified emergencies. 

 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

16 
1762210.1 

C. Design-Build 
 
Where authorized by the Public Contract Code or other statute, the District 
may utilize a design-build selection process for the award of Public Works 
Contracts. 
 

D. Prevailing Wage Contracts for Public Works Projects 
 

Contracts over $1,000 for Public Works Projects are Prevailing Wage 
Contracts subject to the requirements of Labor Code section 1720 et seq. 
and requiring the payment of prevailing wages, including, without limitation, 
requirements that Contractors be registered with the Department of 
Industrial Relations (“DIR”) and maintain certified payroll records, and that 
for Prevailing Wage Contracts over $25,000 involving construction, 
alteration, demolition, installation, or repair work, and Prevailing Wage 
Contracts over $15,000 involving maintenance work, the District not enter 
into or award a Contract to a Contractor that is not registered with the DIR 
and that the District submit notice of Contract award through DIR’s PWC-
100 system within 30 days of the award, but in no event later than the first 
day in which a Contractor begins work.  

 
Section 11: Other Exceptions from Bidding Requirements 
 

A. It is recognized that no set of rules or procedures can take every 
circumstance into account and it is also recognized that occasionally 
circumstances may arise where it is in the District’s best interest to deviate 
from them.  In such cases the department supervisors shall bring the need 
to the General Manager’s attention.  The General Manager, on a case by 
case basis, may waive any of the requirements of this Policy for purchases 
of Goods and/or Services of $40,000 or less.  The District Board of 
Directors, on a case by case basis, may waive any of the requirements of 
this Policy for (1) purchases of Goods and/or Services greater than $40,000 
or (2) the award of Contracts for Public Works Projects greater than 
$15,000, if permitted by State law. 
 

B. Where specified in this Policy, Goods and Services may be purchased by, 
and the award of Contracts for Public Works Projects may be made by, 
Negotiated Procurement.  Negotiated Procurements are permitted:  (1) 
where competitive bidding would be impossible, impractical, or 
incongruous, or would not result in any advantage to the District in its efforts 
to contract for the greatest public benefit; (2) in an emergency; (3) when the 
Goods and/or Services can be obtained from only one source or the price 
is controlled by law; (4) when the amount involved is $10,000 or less; or (5) 
where compelling economic or administrative considerations warrant 
employment of alternate purchasing procedures.  Such considerations may 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

17 
1762210.1 

include, but are not limited to, circumstances in which services have been 
previously rendered by a Contractor who has thereby gained and exhibited 
unique and/or superior experience and/or expertise in relation to the 
District’s operational requirements.  Such procurement shall be negotiated 
by the General Manager as authorized by the Board of Directors. 
 

C. No provision in this Policy shall be interpreted or construed to prohibit or 
prevent the District from renewing or extending existing Contracts for Goods 
and/or Services, provided that normal procurement procedures were used 
in the original selection.  Renewal or extension of such Contracts obligating 
the District to any payment exceeding $40,000 per year shall be subject to 
approval by the Board of Directors. 

 
D. When another public agency or government purchasing cooperative 

organization has awarded a Contract for Goods and/or Services pursuant 
to a process substantially similar to the processes described in this Policy, 
the District may acquire such Goods and/or Services on the same or 
substantially similar terms without conducting its own separate 
Procurement process.  Cooperative and “piggyback” purchasing provides a 
means for the District to join with other public agencies, businesses, or 
government purchasing cooperative organizations for the purpose of 
collectively preparing specifications, and requesting and receiving bids, 
quotations or proposals, or utilizing the quotations and bids obtained by 
other governmental agencies.  Examples of cooperative or piggyback 
purchasing include, but are not limited to, purchases made using another 
agency’s contract, joint buying within a regional area, participation in the 
State of California Multiple Awards Schedules (CMAS) program and 
statewide commodity contracts and the utilization of contracts negotiated by 
municipal leagues or organizations such as the California Special Districts 
Association (CSDA), and California Association of Sanitation Agencies 
(CASA).  Any Contract or arrangement for such cooperative purchases shall 
be subject to approval by the Board of Directors if such approval would 
otherwise be required. The General Manager shall inform the Board of 
Directors any cooperative or piggyback purchases made within the 
purchasing authority of the General Manager at the next regular Board 
meeting after the purchase is made. 

 
Section 12: Sole Source 
 
Sole Source procurement of Goods and/or Services shall not be used unless there is 
substantial evidence that only one source exists to fulfill the District’s requirements.  The 
Services necessary to monitor, maintain, and service the District’s sewer SCADA system, 
which are currently reasonably available from a single vendor, is one example of Sole 
Source Procurement is appropriate.  Except as otherwise authorized in emergency 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

18 
1762210.1 

situations, all Sole Source purchases over $40,000 require approval by the Board of 
Directors.    
 
Sole Source purchases shall be well documented and provide verification that a good 
faith search for competition has been made or that the requested item or service provider 
is deemed to be the only one practicably available.  
 
Sole Source restrictions may be waived in the event of an emergency in order to protect 
the health and safety of the community. 
 
Section 13: Solid Waste and Recycling Carts and Bins 
 
Solid waste and recycling carts and bins are typically ordered in bulk to meet the needs 
of the District and to take advantage of cost savings whenever feasible.  A single order 
for carts or bins may exceed the dollar amount triggering use of an Informal Bid Process 
as set forth in Section 10.  Notwithstanding Section 10, herein, the General Manager is 
authorized make such purchases so long as such purchases are within the District’s 
approved budget, or unless otherwise directed by the Board of Directors.  For purchases 
under this Section that would otherwise require Board of Directors’ approval, the General 
Manager shall inform the Board of Directors of the Procurement at the next regular Board 
meeting after the purchase is authorized.   
 
Section 14: Local Preference 
 
For the purchase of Goods and/or Services, excluding Contracts for Public Works 
Projects, when two or more proposals or request for quotations are the same, in unit, 
quality, service and total cost, preference may be given to the Local Vendor.   
 
Preference may be given to a Local Vendor if the quote for Services or Goods, including 
all applicable taxes and shipping, is no more than 5% higher than the lowest bid (quote) 
received. 
 
Section 15:  Surplus Property 
 
The Board of Directors shall approve the disposition of all Surplus Property.  Surplus 
Property may be offered for sale using any of the processes identified below, transferred 
to another Department, traded-in for new equipment or material, donated, recycled or 
disposed of through the solid waste collection system.  All Surplus Property that is for 
sale shall be sold “as is” and “where is,” with no warranty, guarantee, or representation 
of any kind, expressed or implied, as to the condition, utility or usability of the property 
offered for sale or as otherwise directed by the Board of Directors.  Appropriate methods 
of sale are as follows: public auction; sealed bids; negotiated sale; sell as salvage; or as 
otherwise directed by the Board of Directors. 
 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

19 
1762210.1 

Section 16: Execution of Contracts 
 
After award, all Contracts for Goods and/or Services at or under $40,000, and all 
Contracts for Public Works Projects at or under $15,000, shall be executed on behalf of 
the District by the General Manager unless otherwise directed by the Board of Directors.  
Contracts for Goods and/or Services over $40,000, and Contracts for Public Works 
Projects over $15,000, shall be executed on behalf of the District by the President of the 
Board of Directors, or his or her designee, after Board approval, unless the Board of 
Directors authorizes the General Manager to execute the Contract.  Prior to execution of 
any Contract, the Contractor shall demonstrate that it is authorized to do business in 
California, the County of Orange, and the City of Westminster.  Contractors that are 
organized as a corporation, limited liability company, or other entity under the laws of 
another state must be properly registered with the California Secretary of State pursuant 
to applicable law. 
 
Section 17: Approval by General Counsel 
 
District Counsel shall approve, in writing, the District’s standard Contract (agreement) 
form.  In the event that the District’s standard Contract form is not applicable, the Board 
of Directors or General Manager, at their discretion, may direct District Counsel to review 
any other Contract for approval as to form. 
 
Section 18: Noncompliance 
 
Any Contract entered into which fails in any respect to comply with the provisions of this 
Policy may be voided by the Board of Directors.  
 
Section 19:  Precedence over Prior Policies, Procedures, or Actions 
 
Upon approval by the Board of Directors, this Policy shall be deemed to take precedence 
over any other prior Board of Director policies, procedures, or actions that are in conflict 
with or inconsistent with the provisions of this Policy.  If Staff identifies any conflict or 
inconsistency between this Policy and any other approved District policy or procedure, 
Staff shall inform the Board of Directors of such conflict or inconsistency in writing. 
 
Section 20: Definitions 
 
For the purposes of this section, the words and terms set forth below shall be construed 
in accordance with the following definitions: 

 
A. "Best Value" shall mean the overall combination of quality, price, and other 

elements of a proposal/bid (or combination of several proposals or bids) 
that, when considered together, provide the greatest overall benefit in 
response to the requirements described in the solicitation documents. 
 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

20 
1762210.1 

B. "Budgeted" shall mean the amount of appropriations within a fund adopted 
for expenditure by the Board of Directors. 

 
C. "Change Order" shall mean a properly executed written agreement entered 

into between the District and the Contractor, or a directive unilaterally issued 
by the District, covering modifications to the original Contract, which may 
result in adjustments to the scope of work, cost and/or period of 
performance. 
 

D. “Contract” shall mean any type of arrangement for the purchase of Goods 
and/or Services, including construction services for Public Works Projects.  
Contracts may be referred to in various ways, including "contract", 
"agreement", or "purchase order." 

 
E. “Contractor” shall mean any person or entity that has a Contract with the 

District. 
 

F. "Formal Bid Process" shall mean a competitive selection process requiring 
a public notice inviting bids, availability of specifications, bid opening, 
determination of lowest responsive and responsible bidder, and awarding 
or rejection of the bid(s).  

 
G. “General Manager” means the general manager of the District or person 

designated by the general manager to exercise some or all of the authority 
or to perform all or some of the duties prescribed in this Policy. 

 
H. "General Services"  shall mean the furnishing of labor, time or effort by a 

Contractor, including, but not limited to:  (a) routine, recurring, and usual 
work for the preservation or protection of a publicly-owned, or publicly-
operated facility for intended purposes; (b) minor repainting; (c) resurfacing 
of streets and highways; (d) landscape maintenance, including mowing, 
watering, trimming, pruning, planting, replacement of plants, and servicing 
of irrigation and sprinkler systems; and (e) work performed to keep, operate 
and maintain publicly-owned wastewater or solid waste disposal systems.  
 

I. "Goods" shall mean fixed, movable, disposable, and/or reusable products, 
commodities, or items used by the District, including but not limited to, office 
supplies, program supplies, subscriptions, equipment, vehicles, fuel and 
vehicle supplies, tools, computers, computer hardware and software, 
landscape and irrigation supplies, power tools, janitorial supplies, office 
furniture, and fixtures, which shall be furnished to or used by any 
department.   

 
J. "Informal Bid Process" shall mean a competitive selection process used, 

when applicable, to ensure the most competitive price or Best Value is 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

21 
1762210.1 

received for Goods and/or Services, while avoiding the time and expense 
involved in formal bidding.  The process requires the solicitation of written 
informal bids and/or proposals from potential vendors and the selection of 
a vendor based either on the lowest cost commensurate with the quality and 
scope needed, or Best Value, and subject to any limitations imposed by 
state law.   

 
K. “Local Vendor” shall mean a firm or individual who regularly maintains a 

place of business and transacts business in, or maintains an inventory of 
merchandise for sale in, or is licensed within the District’s boundaries.  
 

L. "Negotiated Procurement" shall mean a selection process whereby the 
General Manager identifies one or more prospective Contractors of his or 
her choice, negotiates with one or more of them, and awards the Contract 
to one of them based on the best interest of the District. 
 

M. "Originating Department" shall mean any District department requiring 
Goods, Services, and/or the award of Contracts for Public Works Projects. 

 
N. “Prevailing Wage Contract” shall mean any Contract requiring the payment 

of prevailing wages and subject to requirements of Chapter 1 of Part 7 of 
Division 2 of the California Labor Code (Section 1720 et seq.).  Prevailing 
Wage Contracts may include, without limitation, Contracts for either Public 
Works Projects or Services that involve construction, alteration, demolition, 
installation, maintenance, repair work, or certain other work done for the 
District; street, sewer, or other improvement work; the laying of carpet; the 
hauling of refuse from a public works site to an outside disposal facility; or 
the on hauling of materials used for paving, grading, and fill onto a public 
works site, if the individual driver’s work is integrated into the flow process 
of construction.   

 
O. "Procurement" shall mean buying, purchasing, renting, leasing, or 

otherwise acquiring any Goods, Services, construction, construction 
services, or professional services.   
 

P. "Professional Services" shall mean services provided by any specially 
trained, educated, experienced or licensed person, company, corporation, 
or firm, and which involve the exercise of discretion and independent 
judgment together with an advanced or specialized knowledge, expertise, 
training, or unique skills gained by formal studies or experience.   

 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

22 
1762210.1 

Q. “Professional Services Agreements (PSA)” shall mean Contracts 
negotiated for Professional Services, which are based on demonstrated 
competence, professional qualifications for the services required, 
availability, and fair and reasonable cost. 

 
R. "Public Works Project" shall mean any construction, reconstruction, 

alteration, enlargement, renewal, or replacement of sewer or other facilities 
that the District is authorized to do, including, but not limited to, the 
furnishing of supplies or materials for any such work as defined pursuant to 
Public Contract Code section 20801. 

 
S. "Purchase Order" shall mean a commercial document issued by a buyer 

to a seller, indicating types, quantities, and agreed prices for products 
or services the seller will provide to the buyer. 

 
T. "Qualified Bidders List" shall mean one list for ongoing service requirements 

for the same or very similar services, including general services, 
professional services, and qualified construction contractors, categorized 
by the type of product sold or work performed for use in soliciting bids.   

 
U. "Responsible Bidder" shall mean a bidder who has demonstrated the 

attribute of trustworthiness, as well as quality, fitness, capacity, and 
experience to satisfactorily perform the work or services proposed. 

 
V. "Responsive Bidder" shall mean a bidder who has submitted a bid which 

conforms in all material respects to the terms and conditions, specifications 
and other requirements requested. 

 
W. "Services" shall mean the furnishing of labor, time or effort by a Contractor.  

Services include both General Services and Professional Services, unless 
otherwise specified. 

 
X. "Sole Source" shall mean an award for Goods and/or Services that are (i) 

of a unique nature based on their quality, durability, availability, fitness or 
qualifications for a particular use; or (ii) only available from one source.   

 
Y. "Surplus Property" means property, other than real property, no longer 

needed by District departments for their operations, obsolete property, 
property in poor or non-working condition, or property that is a by-product 
(i.e., scrap metal, used tires, oil, etc.). 

 



 

1761639.1 

AGENDA ITEM 9B 
 
Date:   April 4, 2023 
 
To:   Board of Directors 
 
Prepared by: Robert Housley, General Manager 
 
Subject:   Consider Approval of a Consultant Agreement between the Midway City 

Sanitary District and Kenneth Robbins to Provide Temporary Consulting 
and Advisory Services in an Amount Not to Exceed $15,600 

 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
Former General Manager Kenneth Robbins retired from the District in December of 
2022.  Mr. Robbins has many years of experience and a vast institutional knowledge of 
the District’s sewer system, engineering software system, regulatory compliance, and 
current and past projects.  With the hiring of a District Engineer, it would be helpful for 
the General Manager and District Engineer to be able to consult with Ken from time to 
time during this transition period as questions come up to ensure that essential 
information and knowledge is not lost and is effectively transitioned over to the new 
District Engineer.  Staff proposes that the District enter into a temporary consultant 
agreement with Mr. Robbins for this limited purpose.    
 
The Proposed Consultant Agreement would be for a 6-month term and would provide 
for District personnel to consult with Mr. Robbins on an as-needed basis as questions 
arise and for Mr. Robbins to provide consultation and advice only.  Mr. Robbins would 
be an independent contractor, would not be under the District’s supervision or control, 
would not maintain office space at the District, and would not be performing functions 
assigned to the General Manager, the District Engineer, or any other current employee.   
It is anticipated that the services provided by Mr. Robbins would consist of no more than 
20 hours per month, on average, over the 6-month term of the agreement, and the 
proposed not-to-exceed amount of $15,600 is based on 120 total hours. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board approve and authorize the General Manager to 
execute the proposed consultant agreement with Kenneth Robbins to provide temporary 
consulting and advisory services, in an amount not to exceed $15,600.00. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No more than $15,600 (20 hours a month x $130.00 per hour x 6 months = $15,600).  
 
Attachment:  Proposed Consultant Agreement  
 



 

 
1761383.1 

CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 
  
THIS AGREEMENT is made this 5th day of April 2023, by and between the 
MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) and Kenneth Robbins 
(“CONSULTANT”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
The following recitals are a substantive part of this Agreement: 
 
1. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Midway City Sanitary District Board 

authorization dated April 4, 2023. 
 
2. District desires to utilize the services of CONSULTANT to provide as-needed 

consulting and advisory services to DISTRICT. 
 
3. CONSULTANT is qualified by virtue of experience, training, education, and 

expertise to accomplish services.  
 

AGREEMENT 
 
THE PARTIES MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Term and Termination.  This Agreement shall be for a term of six (6) 

months, commencing April 5, 2023, and terminating on October 5, 2023 
commence following full execution of this Agreement and shall continue, 
unless sooner terminated pursuant to Subsection 3.4.   

   
2. Services to be Provided.  DISTRICT desires to utilize the services of 

CONSULTANT to provide limited consultation and advice regarding the history 
of the District’s current sewer system and capital infrastructure, compliance 
with regulatory requirements, use of District software systems, and 
development of an updated sewer system master plan, on an as-needed basis, 
as requested and authorized by DISTRICT’s General Manager or his designee.  
The services to be provided by CONSULTANT shall be limited to providing 
consultation and advice of a limited scope and shall not replace or serve as a 
substitute for tasks intended to be performed by any DISTRICT employee.  
This Agreement does not guarantee any specific amount of work.  
CONSULTANT understands and agrees that DISTRICT is not obligated to 
request any specific amount of services from CONSULTANT.  DISTRICT 
understands and agrees that CONSULTANT is not obligated to provide any 
specific amount of services and may decline to provide services requested by 
DISTRICT. CONSULTANT warrants that all services that are provided by 
CONSULTANT will be performed in a competent, professional and satisfactory 
manner. By executing this Agreement, CONSULTANT warrants that it has 
carefully considered how the work should be performed and fully understands 
the facilities, difficulties, and restrictions attending performance of the work 
under this Agreement. 



 

 
1761383.1 

3. Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall be compensated as follows: 
 

3.1 Amount.  For all services performed under this Agreement, DISTRICT 
will compensate CONSULTANT in arrears at the hourly rate of One 
Hundred Thirty Dollars ($130.00) per hour.  Charges for services shall 
be in increments of no more than fifteen minutes.   The hourly rate set 
forth herein is intended to cover all of CONSULTANT’s reasonable 
incidental costs to perform the services; CONSULTANT shall not be 
entitled to reimbursement for mileage, supplies and equipment 
necessary to perform the services, or other similar expenses incidental 
to the services to be provided. Total Compensation under this 
Agreement shall not exceed the total amount of Fifteen Thousand Six 
Hundred Dollars ($15,600.00).  Unless otherwise mutually agreed by 
the parties in writing, CONSULTANT shall not be compensated for any 
services rendered in connection with its performance of this 
Agreement, which are in addition to those set forth herein. 

 
 3.2 Payment. For work under this Agreement, payment shall be made per 

monthly invoice submitted by CONSULTANT for work completed.  
Invoices shall contain a detailed description of the work that was 
completed on each day and the time that was spent on that particular 
item.  Charges for services shall be in increments of no more than fifteen 
minutes.   

 
 3.3 Records of Expenses.  CONSULTANT shall keep complete and accurate 

records of all time worked and costs and expenses incidental to services 
covered by this Agreement, if any.  These records will be made 
available at reasonable times to DISTRICT. 

 
 3.4 Termination. DISTRICT and CONSULTANT shall each have the right to 

terminate this Agreement, without cause, by giving fifteen (15) days’ 
written notice of termination.  If the Agreement is terminated by 
DISTRICT, then the provisions of paragraph 3 would apply to that 
portion of the work completed.  In such event, DISTRICT will 
compensate CONSULTANT for work performed through the date of 
termination.  CONSULTANT is required to present evidence to support 
performed work. 

 
4. Insurance requirements.  The DISTRICT agrees to waive all insurance 

requirements except that CONSULTANT shall submit and maintain evidence of 
current automobile insurance acceptable to DISTRICT during the contract 
period.  Additional insurance will not be required. 

 
5. Non-Liability of Officials and Employees of the District.  No official or 

employee of DISTRICT shall be personally liable to CONSULTANT in the event 
of any default or breach by DISTRICT, or for any amount which may become 
due to CONSULTANT. 

 



 

 
1761383.1 

6. Non-Discrimination. CONSULTANT covenants there shall be no 
discrimination against any person or group due to race, color, creed, religion, 
sex, marital status, age, handicap, national origin, or ancestry, in any activity 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
7. Independent Contractor.  It is understood and agreed to that CONSULTANT 

shall act as and be an independent contractor and not as an agent, officer, or 
employee of the DISTRICT, and that no relationship of employer-employee 
exists between the parties.  During the performance of this Agreement, 
CONSULTANT shall act in an independent capacity and shall not act as a 
DISTRICT officer, employee, or agent.  The personnel performing the services 
under this Agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT (if any) shall at all times be 
under CONSULTANT's exclusive direction and control.  Neither DISTRICT nor 
any of its officers, employees, or agents shall have control over the conduct of 
CONSULTANT, except as set forth in this Agreement.  CONSULTANT may 
complete all services requested by DISTRICT free of daily supervision or 
evaluation of daily performance by DISTRICT and according to CONSULTANT’s 
own methods, and the end product, final result, and/or manner and means by 
which CONSULTANT performs all services shall not be subject to DISTRICT’s 
control.  CONSULTANT shall not maintain an office or any other type of fixed 
business location at DISTRICT's offices.  CONSULTANT shall not obtain or be 
entitled to any rights or benefits which accrue to, or are payable to, 
DISTRICT'S employees in connection with services provided pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Except for fees paid to CONSULTANT as provided for in this 
Agreement, DISTIRCT shall not pay salaries, wages, or other compensation to 
CONSULTANT for the performance of services under this Agreement.  
DISTRICT is not required to make any deductions or withholdings from the 
compensation payable to CONSULTANT under the provisions of this Agreement 
and is not required to issue W-2 Forms for income and employment tax 
purposes for CONSULTANT.   DISTRICT shall not be liable for compensation or 
indemnification to CONSULTANT for injury or sickness arising out of 
performing services hereunder.  CONSULTANT hereby agrees to indemnify and 
hold DISTRICT harmless from any and all claims or liabilities that DISTRICT 
may incur arising from any contention by any third party, including, but not 
limited to, any federal or state agency or other entity, that an employer-
employee relationship exists by reason of this Agreement, including, without 
limitation, claims that DISTRICT is responsible for retirement or other benefits 
allegedly accruing to CONSULTANT. 

 
8. Compliance with Law.  CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable laws, 

ordinances, codes, and regulations of the federal, state, and local government. 
 

  9. Disclosure of Documents.  All documents or other information developed or 
received by CONSULTANT are confidential and shall not be disclosed without 
authorization by DISTRICT, unless disclosure is required by law. 

 
   



 

 
1761383.1 

10. Ownership of Work Product.  All documents or other information 
developed or received by CONSULTANT shall be the property of DISTRICT.  
CONSULTANT shall provide DISTRICT with copies of these items upon 
demand or upon termination of this Agreement. 

 
11. Conflict of Interest and Reporting.  CONSULTANT shall at all times avoid 

conflict of interest or appearance of conflict of interest in performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
12. Notices.  All notices shall be personally delivered or mailed to the below listed 

address, or to such other addresses as may be designated by written notice.  
These addresses shall be used for delivery of service of process. 

 
(CONSULTANT) Kenneth Robbins 
 9272 Kern Avenue 
 Westminster, CA 92683  
  
(DISTRICT) Midway City Sanitary District 
 Attention: General Manager 
 14451 Cedarwood Avenue 
 Westminster, CA 92863 

 
13. Familiarity with Work.  By executing this Agreement, CONSULTANT 

warrants that: (1) it has investigated the work to be performed; (2) it has 
investigated the site of the work and is aware of all conditions there; and (3) it 
understands the facilities, difficulties, and restrictions of the work under this 
Agreement.  Should CONSULTANT discover any latent or unknown conditions 
materially differing from those inherent in the work or as represented by 
DISTRICT, it shall immediately inform DISTRICT of this and shall not proceed, 
except at CONSULTANT'S risk, until written instructions are received from 
DISTRICT. 

 
14. Time of Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance of this 

Agreement, subject, however, to exercise of the standard of care required for 
performance of the services. 

 
15. Limitations Upon Subcontracting and Assignment.  The experience, 

knowledge, capability, and reputation of CONSULTANT were a substantial 
inducement for DISTRICT to enter into this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall 
not contract with any other entity to perform the services required without 
written approval of the DISTRICT. This Agreement may not be assigned 
voluntarily or by operation of law, without the prior written approval of 
DISTRICT. If CONSULTANT is permitted to subcontract any part of this 
Agreement, CONSULTANT shall be responsible to DISTRICT for the acts and 
omissions of its subcontractor as it is for persons directly employed.  Nothing 
contained in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between 
any subcontractor and DISTRICT.  All persons engaged in the work will be 



 

 
1761383.1 

considered employees of CONSULTANT.  DISTRICT will deal directly with and 
will make all payments to CONSULTANT. 

 
16. Authority to Execute.  The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of 

the parties warrant that they are duly authorized to execute this Agreement 
and that by executing this Agreement, the parties are formally bound. 

 
17. Indemnification.  CONSULTANT agrees to protect, defend, and hold 

harmless DISTRICT and its elective or appointive boards, officers, agents, and 
employees from any and all claims, liabilities, expenses, or damages of any 
nature, including attorneys' fees, for injury or death of any person, or damage 
to property, or interference with use of property, arising out of, or in any way 
connected with performance of the Agreement by CONSULTANT, 
CONSULTANT'S agents, officers, employees, subcontractors, or independent 
contractors hired by CONSULTANT.  The only exception to CONSULTANT'S 
responsibility to protect, defend, and hold harmless DISTRICT, is due to the 
negligence of DISTRICT, or any of its elective or appointive boards, officers, 
agents, or employees. 

 
 This hold harmless agreement shall apply to all liability regardless of whether 

any insurance policies are applicable.  The policy limits do not act as a 
limitation upon the amount of indemnification to be provided by CONSULTANT. 

 
  18. Modification. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 

parties and supersedes any previous agreements, oral or written.  This Agreement 
may be modified only by subsequent mutual written agreement executed by 
DISTRICT and CONSULTANT. 

 
  19. Waiver.  All waivers of the provisions of this Agreement must be in writing by the 

appropriate authorities of the DISTRICT and CONSULTANT. 
 
  20. California Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of 

the State of California.  Any action commenced about this Agreement shall be filed 
in the central branch of the Orange County Superior Court. 

 
  21. Interpretation.  This Agreement shall be interpreted as though prepared by both 

parties. 
 

22. Preservation of Agreement.  Should any provision of this Agreement be found 
invalid or unenforceable, the decision shall affect only the provision interpreted, and 
all remaining provisions shall remain enforceable. 

 
23. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original, but all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and 
the same instrument and any executed counterpart may be delivered by facsimile, 
transmission, by portable document format (PDF) via email, or by other mutually 
agreed upon electronic means with the same effect as if an originally executed 
counterpart had been delivered. 



 

 
1761383.1 

 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, DISTRICT and CONSULTANT have caused this 
Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized respective officers as of the date 
first written above. 
 

“DISTRICT” “CONSULTANT” 
MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
 

KENNETH R. ROBBINS 

By: __________________________ 
      Robert Housley, General Manager 
 
 

By: __________________________ 
      Kenneth Robbins, an individual    
 

  
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
_____________________________ 
James H. Eggart, General Counsel 
 
Date: ________________ 
 

 

 



  P a g e  1 | 2 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9C 
 
Date:   April 4, 2023 
 
To:   Board of Directors 
 
Prepared by: Robert Housley, General Manager 
 
Subject:  Consider Approval of Notice of Termination / Non-Renewal of the Automatic 

Renewal and Extension Provision of the Exclusive Franchise Agreement 
with CR&R Incorporated 

             
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION 
In 1998, the District entered into an Exclusive Franchise Agreement with CR&R 
Incorporated and Rainbow Disposal for bin refuse collection and disposal and recycling 
services in the District.  The Agreement was amended in 2002, 2004, 2011, and 2017.  
Rainbow’s interest in the Agreement was transferred and assigned to CR&R in 2016.   
 
The Agreement originally had an 8 ½ year term.  However, pursuant to the 2004 Second 
Amendment, the term was increased to 10 years with an automatic renewal and extension 
(i.e., “evergreen”) provision.  This provision was further amended in 2011 to how it reads 
now.  In effect, Section 2 provides for a ten (10) year term that is automatically extended 
on November 21st of each year by one (1) additional year, so that the remaining term 
shall continue to be ten (10) years.  Section 2 further provides that should either party 
desire that said automatic renewal and extension provision be terminated, such party 
shall give the other written notice of non-renewal not less than two (2) years prior to July 
1st of any year of the Agreement, and that any such notice shall serve to terminate the 
automatic renewal and extension provision.  The Third Amendment containing the current 
version of Section 2 is attached to this Agreement.   
 
Staff proposes that the District give notice of termination / non-renewal of the automatic 
renewal and extension provision pursuant to Section 2 of the Agreement prior to July 1st.  
Doing so will establish a set date the Agreement expires (November 20, 2035) and give 
the District the future option to evaluate potential competitive alternatives.  Pursuant to 
Section 2 of the Agreement, the parties can mutually agree to reinstate the automatic 
renewal and extension provision at any time before the Agreement expires. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff Recommends the Board approve and authorize the General Manager to sign the 
attached Notice of Termination / Non-Renewal of Automatic Renewal and Extension 
Provision of the Exclusive Franchise Agreement Between the Midway City Sanitary 
District and CR&R Incorporated. 
 
 
 
 



  P a g e  2 | 2 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
No significant immediate fiscal impact is anticipated.  The Exclusive Franchise 
Agreement will continue to remain in effect through November 20, 2035. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Third Amendment to Exclusive Franchise Agreement 
2. Proposed Notice Letter 

 
 







the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 

Liability Act of 1980, 42 USC §9601 et seq.(CERCLA); (ii) the 

Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 USC §5101, et seq.; (iii) 

the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 USC §6901 et seq.; 

(iv) the Clean Water Act, 33 USC § 1251 et seq.; (v) California Health

and Safety Code §§25115-25117, 25249.8, 25281, and 25316; (vi) the 

Clean Air Act, 42 USC §7401 et seq.; and (vii) California Water Code 

§ 13050; (b) any substances identified in any and all amendments, rules

or regulations promulgated thereunder to such enumerated statutes or 

acts cmTently existing or hereafter enacted; and (c) any other 

hazardous or toxic substance, material, chemical, waste or pollutant 

identified as hazardous or toxic or regulated under any other applicable 

federal, state or local laws or regulations, including any of the 

Environmental Laws, currently existing or hereinafter enacted, 

including, without limitation, friable asbestos, polychlorinated 

biphenyl's ("PCBs"), petroleum, natural gas and synthetic fuel 

products, and by-products. 

J. "Hazardous Waste" shall mean all substances defined as

Hazardous Waste, acutely Hazardous Waste, or extremely Hazardous 

Waste by the State of California in Health and Safety Code, Div. 20, 

Chap. 6.5 including but not limited to §25110.02, §25115, and §25117 

or in the future amendments to or recodifications of such statutes or 

identified and listed as Hazardous Waste by the US Environmental 

Protection Agency (EPA), pursuant to the Federal Resource 

Conservation and Recovery Act (42 USC §6901 et seq.) (RCRA), all 

future amendments thereto, and all rules and regulations promulgated 

thereunder. 

2. SECTION 2, TERM OF AGREEMENT, of the Agreement is hereby amended in
its entirety to read as follows: 

"SECTION 2: TERM OF AGREEMENT. 

3 

796618.2 

robert
Highlight



The term of this Agreement shall be for a minimum of ten (I 0) years 

from the Effective Date of the Third Amendment, commencing 

November 21, 2011, 2011, and shall be in full force and effect tln·ough 

November 21, 2021, unless earlier te1minated in accordance with the 

provisions of this Agreement. On November 21, 2012, and each year 

thereafter, the term of this Agreement shall be automatically extended 

one (I) additional year, so that the remaining term shall continue to be 

ten ( I 0) years. In no event shall said term, including any extension 

thereof, at any time exceed a total period of ten (I 0) years, and should 

either party desire that said automatic renewal and extension provision 

be terminated, such paiiy shall give the other written notice of non

renewal not less than two (2) years prior to July I st of any year of the 

Agreement. Any such notice shall serve to terminate the automatic 

one (I) year renewal and extension provision only, and this Agreement 

shall remain in effect for the balance of the term then outstanding. In 

the event that either party exercises its right to terminate said 

automatic renewal and extension provision, it is acknowledged that the 

parties may nevertheless subsequently reinstate the automatic renewal 

and extension provided by mutual written agreement." 

3. Paragraph E of SECTION 5, RECYCLING OBLIGATIONS, of the Agreement is
hereby amended to add subparagraph ( 6) to read as follows: 

"6. District shall have the option to divert the green/yard waste 

material from solid waste containers with the recovery systems at the 

MRFs. The diversion will be accomplished by running the solid waste 

from the solid waste containers through a system of trommels, 

conveyors and so1iing technology. The Contractor shall recover 

green/yard waste and organic material from the exiting solid waste cart 

at the MRFs with a guaranteed 75% minimum recycling diversion." 

4. Paragraph Hof SECTION 5, RECYCLING OBLIGATIONS, of the Agreement is
hereby amended to read in its entirety as follows: 

4 

796618.2 

robert
Highlight







































 

14451 Cedarwood Avenue ● Westminster, California 92683 ● (714) 893-3553 ● Fax (714) 891-8624 ● www.mcsandst.com 
1760730.1 

N

S

S
A

N
ITARY

M
ID

W
AY

W

DIS

TR
IC

T

E

CITY

 
 
 
 
 

April 04, 2023 
 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL, RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 
 
CR&R Incorporated 
11292 Western Avenue 
P.O. Box 125 
Stanton, CA 90680 
Attn: David Ronnenberg, President 
 

RE: Exclusive Franchise Agreement Between Midway City Sanitary District and 
CR&R Incorporated; Notice of Termination / Non-Renewal of Automatic 
Renewal and Extension Provision 

 
Mr. Ronnenberg: 

 
Section 2 of the Exclusive Franchise Agreement between the Midway City Sanitary 

District (“District”) and CR&R Incorporated (“CR&R) provides for a ten (10) year term that is 
automatically extended on November 21st of each year by one (1) additional year, so that the 
remaining term shall continue to be ten (10) years.  Section 2 further provides that should either 
party desire that said automatic renewal and extension provision be terminated, such party shall 
give the other written notice of non-renewal not less than two (2) years prior to July 1st of any 
year of the Agreement, and that any such notice shall serve to terminate the automatic renewal and 
extension provision. 
 

Pursuant to Section 2 of the Agreement, the District hereby provides notice of its desire to 
terminate and not renew the automatic renewal and extension provision, effective November 21, 
2025.  Accordingly, unless the parties mutually agree to reinstate the automatic renewal and 
extension provision, the Agreement will expire at 11:59 p.m. on November 20, 2035.  
 

The District looks forward to continuing its strong and effective working relationship with 
CR&R for the remaining term of the Agreement.  Should you have any question regarding this 
letter, please feel free to contact me. 

 
Cordially, 
 
_________________________ 
Robert Housley, General Manager 
Midway City Sanitary District 
 
cc:  James H. Eggart, District General Counsel 
 Board of Directors 

Board of Directors 
                                 
Tyler Diep 
Andrew Nguyen 
Chi Charlie Nguyen 
Sergio Contreras 
Mark Nguyen 
 
General Manager 
Robert Housley 



 

 
 
 
March 29, 2023 
 
 
 
RE: Request for Support to Utilize Landfills Outside of Orange County 
 
 
We are writing to you today to express our utmost concern regarding the current landfill system 
situation within Orange County. The attached letter explains a problem that arose over a month 
ago regarding landfill operations. Residential, commercial and transfer vehicle drivers report 
delays of 3-4 hours daily, waiting in line at the landfill to empty their trucks.  
 
After numerous telephone calls and emails, it is still unresolved, and in fact, continues to worsen. 
This is not a problem of our making, but we feel it is our obligation to alert you of this circumstance, 
as the situation is becoming extremely critical.  Due to the delays at the landfill, it is beginning to 
impact our daily operations, and in some cases, routes are not completed as scheduled. 
 
The attached Solid Waste Association of Orange County (SWAOC) letter states, every facet of 
the waste system is reliant on the efficient flow of materials, culminating in access to landfill 
disposal. We must have someplace to deliver this material. We cannot temporarily store the waste 
at our MRF’s or in our collection vehicles. Doing so is unsafe, and it would violate our operating 
permits. Every waste hauler in the County is experiencing the same issue, and all have reached 
the point where they must explore disposal options outside of the Orange County landfill system, 
despite the waste delivery agreements. 
 
We request your support in a variance to dispose of solid waste at other landfills outside of Orange 
County until such time the system is once again fully operational. Please respond by letter or 
email with your support at your earliest convenience. 
 
If you have any additional questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 714.349.2864. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 

Julie Barreda 
Regional Vice President 
 






	1. Agenda 04-04-2023
	4. Minutes 03-21-2023 (GC revised)
	5a. Staff Report on BILL PYMTS
	5b. FY 2022-2023 AP Disbursements
	7a1. Audit Services FY 22-23
	7a2. Statement of Work - Audit Services 22-23 PINK
	7a3. Statement of Work - Compilation & Preparation 22-23 PURPLE
	7a4. Statement of Work - Agreed-upon Procedures 22-23 BLUE
	7b1. Staff Rpt 4.04.2023-Robert Mayfield pay in lieu of time off financial hardship
	9a1. 04.04.2023 Staff Report re Amendments to Purchasing Policy
	9a2. Redline Comparison - MCSD Purchasing Policy - June 2017 to April 2023
	9a3. April 2023 MCSD  Reso Adopting Updated Puchasing Policy and Procedures
	9a4. MCSD Purchasing Policy - April 2023 (Clean)
	9b1. 04.04.2023 staff report re PSA Kenneth Robbins
	9b2. Consultant Agreement with Ken Robbins
	9c1. 04.04.2023 Staff Report re Franchise Agreement Notice
	9c2. 3rd Amendment signed 11-21-2011 (highlighted sec 2)
	9c3. 04.04.2023 MCSD Letter Non-Renewal of Automatic Renewal and Extension Provision
	10a1. Landfill Issue Support
	10a2. SWAOC Letter

